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1.  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong
(hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in
Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the Bank hereinafter as the
“Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking
and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank's
subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.
The address of the Bank's registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The immediate holding company of the Bank is Cinda Financial
Holdings Co. Limited (“Cinda Financial Holdings”) since 30 May
2016. Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (“BOCHK"), the Group's
former immediate holding company, disposed all its interests in the
Group. The transaction was completed and the share transfer of the
Group effected on 30 May 2016.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale securities, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss, precious metals at fair value, investment properties which
are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value
or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Repossessed assets and assets held for sale are
stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell as further explained in Notes 2.23 and 2.26 respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires the Management to exercise judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Except for the annual improvements to HKFRSs that are already
mandatorily effective for accounting period beginning on 1 January
2016, there is no other standard or amendment adopted by
the Group in 2016. The impact of the adoption of these annual
improvements is not material to the Group's financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments that are already
mandatorily effective for accounting period beginning

on 1 January 2016

RAFEE
BRERAZEFE FAEEHEE
Applicable for  Currently
8| R NE financial years relevant to
Standards/Amendments Content beginning on  the Group
BB ENE15 (KIEET) WmEHBEEM 20165F1H1R =
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 Yes
BRI ERFE 165 BB FEER BE AENEY 2016F1H1H &
F415% (KERT)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments) Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 No
BRI ERFE 165 BB FEER BB T E S 2 AT N T A 2016F1H1H &
F3855% (KLERT)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016 No
Depreciation and Amortisation
ER G ERFE27552011) (RIEF]) BIUMBHRERANERE 20165F1 1R =
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016 Yes
BB R F285%(2011) KREER Fa0ROIINEENER 2016F1H1H &
BB B E LR 1058 &
BB BIMELEBNFE129 (KERT)
HKAS 28 (2011), HKFRS 10 and Investment entities: Applying the Consolidation 1 January 2016  No
HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Exception
BRMBHRELERNFE 15 (KERT) WS EXBHES 2 g5 RIE 2016F1A1H &
HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 1 January 2016  No
Operations
TR WG ER 145 EEIBIEERA 201651 A1H &
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 No
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(a) Standards and amendments that are already
mandatorily effective for accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2016 (Cont’d)

HKAS 1 (Amendment), “Disclosure Initiative”. The amendments
to HKAS 1 are designed to further encourage companies to apply
professional judgement in determining what information to disclose
in their financial statements. For example, the amendments make
clear that materiality applies to the whole of financial statements
and that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the
usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that companies should use professional judgement in
determining where and in what order information is presented in the
financial disclosures. This amendment does not have material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment), “Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements”. The amendment restores the option to allow an
entity to apply the equity method to account for its investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements. Entities electing to change to the equity method in
its separate financial statements shall have to apply the same
accounting for each category of investments so elected and are
required to apply this change retrospectively. This amendment does
not have any material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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(Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments issued that are not

yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2016

The following standards and amendments have been issued and are

mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017:

BRERAZFE RAFEHR

Applicable AEEEEA
for financial Currently
8| MEFT RE years beginning relevant to
Standards/Amendments Content on/after the Group
BRGHERETR (KEET) BERE T 20171 A1R =
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017  Yes
ER G ERE125% (&KERT) HARBRBRIBRELEREHEE 20171 A1 &
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 1 January 2017  No
Unrealised Losses
BRI B HELRF1058 K REEBABEKA S PEZEN fFE A
BB G ERFE285E (KLEE]) BELEIEA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined No
HKAS 28 (2011) and its Associate or Joint Venture
BRI RE R B2 (BB MRGBARANX R S5 HENTE 201851818 &
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based 1 January 2018  No
Payment Transactions
BB WS ER FA (BT A E BB RS LR B [RRAF 201851818 &
JER BB MmELRESR [T A
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 1 January 2018  No
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
BB s R 5595k SMIA 2018F1A1H &
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018  Yes
BRI B ELRIFE155% BRREF &R A 2018F1A1H =#
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018  Yes
BB E LR 1558 (KLIE85T) HEBM B HREERFE155IR 2018F1A1H =
REF & REBRABEE
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from 1 January 2018  Yes
Contracts with Customers
BB HmEERE165% HE 2019F1 1B &
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019  Yes
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2016 (Cont’d)

o Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments will result in additional disclosure
to be provided in the financial statements. The Group is
considering the financial impact of the standard and the
timing of its application.

° HKFRS 9,
9 “Financial Instruments”

“Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS
completes the International
Accounting Standards Board’'s comprehensive response to
the financial crisis. HKFRS 9, the equivalent standard of IFRS
9 under HKFRS, includes a logical model for classification
and measurement, a single, forward-looking “expected loss”
impairment model and a tighter linkage of risk management
to hedge accounting. The changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are

highlighted as follows:

(1) Classification and Measurement
Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised
cost, (2) measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (all fair value changes other than interest
accrual, amortisation and impairment will be recognised in other
comprehensive income) or (3) measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition, and
subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2016 (Cont’d)

(i) Classification and Measurement (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost
only if it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the entity's
business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and the asset's contractual cash flows characteristics
represent only unleveraged payments of principal and interest. A
debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income if it is held in a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and the instrument fulfils the contractual cash
flows characteristics. All other debt instruments are to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair
value with limited circumstances that cost may be an appropriate
estimate of fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading
will be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other
equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains
and losses in other comprehensive income without subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the income statement
even upon disposal. Dividend income is recognised in the income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.

Financial liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the
classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities
have been basically carried forward with minimal amendments from
HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2016 (Cont’d)

(i) Classification and Measurement (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were
changed to address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair
value attributable to changes in the credit risk of the financial
liabilities will be presented in other comprehensive income. The
remaining amount of the total gain or loss is included in the income
statement. If this creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is presented in the
income statement. The determination of whether there will be a
mismatch will need to be made at initial recognition of individual
liabilities and will not be re-assessed. Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to the
income statement but may be transferred within equity. This removes
the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit
risk of liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. It also means
that gains caused by the deterioration of an entity’s own credit risk
on such liabilities will no longer be recognised in profit or loss.

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value
measurement contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial
instruments that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of an
unquoted equity instrument.

(i) Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model
that will require more timely recognition of expected credit losses.
Specifically, it requires entities to account for 12 months expected
credit losses from inception when financial instruments are first
recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected credit losses on
a more timely basis when there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition. The impairment for financial
instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments), loan
commitments and financial guarantees will be governed by this
standard.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2016 (Cont’d)

) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the
accounting treatments with risk management activities and enable
entities to better reflect these activities in their financial statements.
It relaxes the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness
which more risk management strategies may be eligible for hedge
accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on
hedged items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with
more relevant information about risk management and the effect of
hedge accounting on the financial statements.

Early application of HKFRS 9 in its entirety at the same time is
permitted. Only the part related to own credit risk can be elected to
be early applied in isolation. The Group has already formed a group-
wide project team to assess the impact of HKFRS 9, formulate the
work plan and implement the standard. Significant works has been
done on analysing our financial instruments, building models and
designing new workflows. Due to the complication of the project, no
quantitative information of the potential effect is concluded yet.

o HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
HKFRS 15 applies a single model and specifies the accounting
treatment for all revenue arising from contracts with
customers. The new standard is based on the core principle
that revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration
expected to be entitled when control of promised good
or service transfers to customer. It is also applicable to the
recognition and measurement of gains or losses on the
sale of some non-financial assets such as properties or
equipment that are not an output of ordinary activities.
HKFRS 15 also includes a set of disclosure requirements
about revenue from customer contracts. The new standard
will replace the separate models for goods, services and
construction contracts stipulated in different standards under
the current HKFRS. Early application is permitted. The Group
is considering the financial impact of the standard and the
timing of its application.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2016 (Cont’d)

Hedge accounting (Cont’d)

In June 2016, HKICPA has issued amendment to HKFRS 15,
“Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. The amendments are intended to address
several implementation issues discussed by the Joint
Transition Resource Group for Revenue Recognition. The
Group is considering the financial impact of the standard and

the timing of its application.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”. HKFRS 16 supersedes the existing
standard and interpretations related to leases. It applies
a single control model to identify leases and distinguish
between leases and service contracts. Significant changes
to lessee accounting are introduced, with the distinction
between operating and finance leases removed and the right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities recognised except under
short term and low value leases. There are no significant
changes to the lessor accounting requirements. The standard
is applied retrospectively. Early application is permitted for
entities that have also adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”. The Group is considering
the financial impact of the standard and the timing of its
application.

Improvements to HKFRSs

contains numerous amendments to

HKFRSs which the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary.

It comprises amendments that result in accounting changes for
presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well as
terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual
HKFRSs. The amendments are already effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The adoption of these

improvements does not have a material impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee). Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends
received and receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is
recognised in the income statement when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Management, which
is the chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates
resources and assesses the performance of operating segments.
Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are
included in determining operating segment performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or exchange rates at the end of the reporting period
for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow
hedge or qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of the
securities. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes in
the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified as available for
sale are included in other comprehensive income.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated
into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

o assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the
end of the reporting period;

o income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates; and
o all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

currency translation reserve in equity through other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in
active markets, including recent market transactions, and through
the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are
carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair
value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Cont'd)

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their
fair value are recognised immediately in the income statement unless
they are designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments,
then they are subject to measurement under the hedge accounting
requirements.

For derivative instruments designated as hedging instrument and are
effectively hedged, the method of recognising the resulting fair value
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as follows:

(a) Hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable
future cash flow attributable to a recognised asset or liability,
or a highly probable forecasted transaction (cash flow
hedge).

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
The Group also documents its assessment, both at the hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that
are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. These criteria
should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for
under hedge accounting.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Cont'd)

(a) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the income statement in the periods when the hedged
item affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any accumulated
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised in the income statement when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately reclassified to the
income statement.

(b) Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity; a gain or loss on the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement. Accumulated gains and losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (e.g. prepayment options or incentives relating
to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis
points paid or received between parties to the contract, and directly
attributable origination fees and costs which represent an integral
part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised on the written down value using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral
part of the effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably
over the period when the related service is provided, such as
administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services fee.
Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related
syndication arrangement has been completed and the Group has
retained no part of the loan package for itself or has retained a
part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to the other
participants.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity securities and available for sale
financial assets. The Management determines the classification of
investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets
are recognised initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss, all transaction costs of financial
assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedges.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets
one of the criteria set out below, and is so designated by the
Management:

o eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and

losses on them on different bases; or

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities
or both that is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the group is provided internally on that basis to the
Management; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

o relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting
from those financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction
costs taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
(excluding the interest component) are reported in net trading gain/
loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The interest component is reported as part of
interest income.

2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
including placements with and advances to banks and other
financial institutions, investment debt securities without an active
market and loans and advances to customers. They arise when the
Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with
no intention of trading the receivable. They are initially recorded
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowances for impairment losses.

3) Held-to-maturity financial investments

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in
active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s Management has both the positive
intention and the ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group
sold held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an isolated event
beyond the Group’s control, non-recurring and could not have
been reasonably anticipated by the Group, such as a significant
deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in
statutory or regulatory requirement; or (ii) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would
be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are initially
recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(4) Available-for-sale financial investments

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are
either designated as such or are not classified in any of the other
categories. They are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time but may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investments are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of
premium and discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other operating income when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that
asset that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest method. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the financial asset using the effective interest
method. If the financial asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, the amount recorded in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale
securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
deposits, debt securities and certificate of deposit in issue, and
other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term.
Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedges. It is measured at fair value and any
gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement.

(2) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue, and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue and other
liabilities, other than those classified as trading liabilities are carried
at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period using the effective interest
method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in
the financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee
was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation
recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are
taken to the income statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are recognised on
the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells
the assets. Loans and receivables (except investment securities
without an active market) are recognised when cash is advanced
to the borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the Group either continues to recognise the transferred
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if control
remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are
not trading liabilities are recognised when money is received from
customers, other liabilities are recognised when such obligations
arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the balance sheet
when and only when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to
repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future date
under a repurchase agreement are referred to as repos. Securities
and bills purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-sell
to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Cont'd)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to
banks, placements from banks and other financial institutions,
as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash received from the
counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as financial
investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Reverse repos or securities borrowing are initially recorded in the
balance sheet as cash and due from banks or placements with
banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received as
collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised
on the balance sheet. The difference between sale and repurchase
price is recognised as interest income or interest expense over the life
of the agreements using the effective interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement
date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.12 Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses
valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models
and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals are initially
recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-
market gains or losses on precious metals are included in net trading
gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
reliably estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets may be impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following probable loss

events:
(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payment;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below
investment grade level for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or

observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant.

If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment together with all
other financial assets that are not individually significant or for
which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that are

individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk
characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those
in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions
that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience
is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not exist currently.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in
the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial

difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as new loans.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
2) Financial assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the accumulated losses, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost or amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
the income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether
the assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed through the
income statement. With respect to equity instruments, further fair
value changes are recognised in the reserve for fair value change of
available-for-sale securities through other comprehensive income,
impairment losses are not reversed through the income statement.

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Potential indications of impairment may include
significant adverse changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets (Cont'd)

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

In the Bank's balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment
in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from that
entity if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
that entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in
its consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in
the Group, are classified as investment properties. Properties leased
out within Group companies are classified as investment properties
in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of
the definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including

related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.16 Investment properties (Cont'd)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment and is
included in the carrying amount of investment properties. Once the
item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at
fair value. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income as a revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant
and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are
shown at fair value based on periodic, at least annual, valuations
by external independent valuers less subsequent accumulated
depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset. In the intervening periods, the directors review the carrying
amount of premises, by reference to the open market value of
similar properties, and adjustments are made when there has been a
material change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or
are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises
are credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases of
the same individual asset are charged against premises revaluation
reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases
are expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases
are credited to the income statement up to the amount previously
debited, and then to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon disposal
of premises, the relevant portion of the premises revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred
from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down
the cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

o Properties Over the life of government
land leases
o Plant and equipment 2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
as at the end of each reporting period.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to determine whether there
is any indication that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement except where the asset
is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the
revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as
a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss
is reversed through the premises revaluation reserve or the income
statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are
recognised in the income statement.

Properties, plant and equipment classified as held for sale is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.

2.18 Leases
(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The total payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.18 Leases (Cont'd)
2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified as finance leases
as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e. transaction
price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of
the land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities.
Investment properties acquired under finance leases are carried at
their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than
three months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances
with banks and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes
classified as investment securities.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.21 Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes
by the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the
ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for unused annual leave and the amount of
sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current
period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual
leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.



www.nch.com.hk

%155 B % 4% 4% « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2016 ANNUAL REPORT 43§

2. EESIHHEE®)

221 EERH (B)
3) #E2irE

FREEBRHIBEMSEEELAEERHETEZ
WEEMT MzEEzSEMEASMEHGEE &
EFRRAZARES T BT AR B - g st
ZraEsmEaA BEHER2EARST HEN
SUAMBEE -

(4) REFzEAEE

AEERET —BEFFEESHWAENER/ATE
It 57T ) 5 4% I 51 81 AT 42 i %aﬂ"'JZii$ELHE,HE%
St EREMET AR

BN ERENGERMNAZZEERESERLEY
NERERNGEEERBRA  XRKEBELSR
ERHEmEERSIARTLEN ENAEZABT
EEERFEESRERE-

(A IR AE LA T2 80 P A TR R
«  REFSEAAERESTRERZ A R
¢ AREEREEABEMZA

BB ISR R A B AT 8B & E
£ BT EAHE AR BB TREFSER BFR

ZEHREAMERBNEERERAZH B HK
REX

. ARIE AR BIEE B R AR IRIEAA - B4R
M2 BEBEREREMZER -

. FER B IA

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted
if the amounts are significant.

(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan
is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the
defined benefit plan, is recognised immediately in the consolidated
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net

defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following

changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “interest

expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated income

statement by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements

° net interest expense or income
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period
in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation
of certain assets including available-for-sale securities and premises.
However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused
tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement
except for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement
of available-for-sale securities and revaluation of premises which
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which
case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income
statement together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment
property is determined based on the presumption that the
revaluation amount of such investment property will be recovered
through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their
fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related
outstanding loans on the date of repossession, and the related loans
and advances together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed
assets are measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less
costs to sell and are reported as “non-current assets held for sale”
included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary
capacities, that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets and any
gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as
an asset.

2.26 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through sale, they are available
for sale in their present condition and their sale is highly probable.
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.27 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or
has significant influence over the Group; (ii) is a member of the same
financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or
parent reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the
Group or parents; (v) is subject to common control with the Group;
(vi) is an entity in which a person identified in (iv) controls; and (vii)
provides key management personnel services to the Group or its
parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in essential estimates
and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the
key assumptions or other estimation uncertainties will be presented
below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible that actual results
may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.1 Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans and advances before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been
an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group
(e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on assets in the group. The Management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2016
are shown in Note 22.

3.2 Impairment of financial investments

The Group reviews its investment portfolios to assess impairment
at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether any of these
investments is impaired, risk characteristics and performance such
as external credit rating and market price will be assessed. The
Group makes estimates on the default rate and loss severity of
each investment with reference to market performance of the
portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or performance
of the underlying assets, or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the collateralised assets. The methodology and
assumptions used for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of financial investments as at 31 December 2016
are shown in Note 24.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted
in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis
and models with built-in functions available in externally acquired
financial analysis or risk management systems widely used by the
industry such as option pricing models. To the extent practical, the
models use observable data. In addition, valuation adjustments
may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not considered
in the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates
are required for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters,
assumptions and modeling techniques. Further details will be
discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31
December 2016 are shown in Note 21.

3.4 Classificiation of held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity securities. This classification
requires significant management judgement to evaluate the Group's
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the
Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other than for
specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, such as selling an
insignificant amount, selling close to maturity or due to significant
credit deterioration of such investments, it will be required to
reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets as available-for-sale
securities. The investments would then be measured at fair value and
not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December
2016 are shown in Note 24.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.5 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
estimation of available tax credits and the possibility to recover such
deferred tax assets recognised.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a
variety of business activities. The principal financial risks are credit
risk, market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk)
and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to
these risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance
structure, policies and processes for managing and the methods used
to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group's risk management governance structure is designed to
cover all business processes and ensure various risks are properly
managed and controlled in the course of conducting business.
The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure
with a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify,
measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise. These
risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed
and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies.
Various groups of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities
for risk management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Financial risk management framework (Cont'd)

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders,
is the highest decision-making authority of the Group and has the
ultimate responsibility for risk management. The Board, with the
assistance of its committees, has the primary responsibility for the
formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the
Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established
by the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group's
various types of risks, approving high-level risk management policies
and monitoring their implementation, recommending senior risk
management organisational structure to the Board, including credit
approval authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit
approval for the Credit Approval Committee. The Risk Management
Committee would refer any specific transaction to the Board if it is
deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for credit approval
within the authorization granted by the Board of Directors. The
Chief Executive is responsible for organising and implementing the
risk management strategies and objectives established by the Board
of Directors, managing various risks and approving significant risk
exposures or transactions within the authorization granted by the
Board of Directors.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence
while risk management units, which are independent from the
business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of
different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk
management policies and procedures.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Financial risk management framework (Cont'd)

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems,
including establishment of an organisational structure that sets clear
lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the business
areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control
environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring,
the Group has a comprehensive product development and risk
monitoring system where roles and responsibilities of all related units
are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on product
development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the
Management, respective product management units are responsible
for formulating business and product development plans, and
proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group's
overall strategies. Units that are responsible for risk management,
legal, compliance and finance, etc. are accountable for risk
assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management
units work closely with relevant risk evaluating units to identify
and assess the risks of new products. Risk evaluating units conduct
independent review on the risk assessment results and the
corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be
launched upon completion of the product due diligence process to
the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to
our customers. All new treasury products require approval from a
specialised committee before launching.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is
unable to or unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk
exists in the trading book and banking book, as well as from on- and
off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from
lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk
management policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk
limits to manage and control credit risk that may arise. These
policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and
updated to cope with changes in market conditions and business
strategies.

The Group's organisational structure establishes a clear set of
authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management
committee authorised by the Chief Executive, is responsible for the
implementation of the credit risk management strategies as well
as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group's loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different
units of the Group have their respective credit risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence. The
risk management units, which are independent from the business
units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks
and have the primary responsibilities for providing an independent
due diligence through identifying, measuring, monitoring and
controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances,
as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management
policies and procedures. They report directly to the Credit and
Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive, Credit Approval
Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets
up independent risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and
submits management information and reports to the Bank on a
regular basis.

101



#1178 #4444 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2016 ANNUAL REPORT 4

www.nch.com.hk

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, TEREAERERE(®)
41 EERR (&)
CEREREELE ()

EXEREKNEERNIKR EFSREEEENR
ZEERTREREREEEL TREAREESS
BRI ZERAZEEFTEERETEEXHHERBA
B-AEBERREEEBUE FR XZRERBKIE
B FERBAEX REEEXBOEMER-

= BRI R

FAEARBENTSBER AEEERBEREER
B WHEITNASHRBRENEESR-

TREF XSUFARFEREEARIEERBT
RMEEELREZERFT A RERBRLRERT
ENMEE B R — LR IEERENREN —R
BRTABOREALBINAREEEM A SE
TTEMEZ LR EREEHBLNAAREREM
MEEEMERERR (H)E- - FTERBAERE
FAEREEEBANR (RREBOBXEER) MERE
ER(RBBOBRXREE)UASKEEEH]  TE
REXZBRTENEEER EERBER LA
ERERRTEARTRRFUETEERBRT G - K
SEERAERD BB BB AN REZHM
BREAGR (WER)RIFEESEL-

102

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk management framework (Cont’d)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The
Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the Credit
Approval Committee and the Chief Executive. Based on management
needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the credit-related
subordinates within the limit authorised by the Board of Directors.
The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority according to
the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk, and
the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has
been continuously revising its credit strategies and conducting
rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted
according to the level of risk associated with the customer,
counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general,
most of the credit applications will be reviewed and assessed by
independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before approval,
with exceptions given to designated advances which satisfy certain
conditions. After funding being drawn, these designated advances
will be (randomly) reviewed by designated unit(s) which is(are)
independent from the front line business units. Obligor ratings
(in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of
loss given default) are assigned to credit applications for non-retail
exposures to support credit approval. Retail internal rating systems
are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans, etc. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well
as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)

Advances (Cont’d)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates
(if applicable) to support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit
risk. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are
used for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive
review is required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be
mapped to Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure
of internal master rating scale is in compliance with the requirement
of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are
provided to the Management, Credit Approval Committee, Executive
Committee, Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors
to facilitate their continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors
changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio
and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group's
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets
into five categories with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as
below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is
not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position.
Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could occur if adverse
conditions persist.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)

Advances (Cont’d)

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a
definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable
and the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest,
taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after
all collection options (such as the realisation of collateral or the
institution of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets, the
obligor ratings or external credit ratings, assessment of the
underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer/security
issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and
control processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring and
stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions
with counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any
situation where a payment in cash, securities or equities is made in
the failure of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities.
Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or
customer to cover all settlement risk arising from the Group’s market
transactions on any single day.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented
in the credit risk management policies and procedures which cover
acceptance criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut
ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a
regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with
the type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the
underlying credit. The Group has established a mechanism to update
the value of its main type of collateral, real estate properties, with
the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured
with the Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the
guarantor’s financial condition, credit history and ability to meet
obligations.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not hold any collateral that
it was permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the
borrower (2015: Nil).

(A) Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure
to the Group without taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum
exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters
of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the
guarantees are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full
amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and

their financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial
assets are as follows.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(A) Credit exposures (Cont’d)

Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the
nature of the counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on
these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
investments

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the
preferred agreement for documenting derivatives activities of the
Group. It provides the contractual framework under which dealing
activities of over-the-counter (“OTC") derivative transactions
are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a
termination event. In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support
Annex (“CSA") will be included to form part of the Schedule to the
ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from one
counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and
commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 105. Advances
and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group
taking account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The
collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed on pages
117 to 118. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the commitments
that are unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group
would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case
where the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent
liabilities and commitments, 14.05% (2015: 15.74%) was covered
by collateral as at 31 December 2016.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts

IRHUR B EHE R 2 XM E A BR T 4% G KR B Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances
AR are summarised by product type as follows:
2016 2015
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— %15 - Mortgages 26,219,040 23,956,056
- ERAKR - Credit cards 441,046 732,148
— Hfb — Others 11,549,920 9,827,384
NG Corporate
- BEEX — Commercial loans 141,974,726 115,579,409
— B5mE — Trade finance 7,596,230 6,141,777
187,780,962 156,236,774
BEHER Trade bills 5,665,154 14,072,143
193,446,116 170,308,917

FRBIBRAZE

HAS M2 @B RK

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue

BE ADIERENR - AR MEEZENR &
H—RyMEREBHRIDAEE  BIFIEETR
B AAMEREZERECABRAREETEA

BRERARRERENR RERX—FBIEERAESR
R EE R IIEB R IE

EEREEBRRREFET -—BAZHBREMS &
BRGEHELEACFEERBAUENRKRR
e BlZERE HBRERSK -

when the principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid.
Advances repayable by regular instalments are classified as overdue
when an instalment payment is past due and remains unpaid.
Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but
repayment has not been made in accordance with the instruction or
when the advances have continuously exceeded the approved limit
that was advised to the borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred and that loss event(s) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the advances that can be reliably
estimated.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances
has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows generated by the advances. Objective evidence that
advances are impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the loss events.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective
evidence of an impairment loss include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
principal or interest payment;

- For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, the Group has granted to the borrower a
concession that it would not otherwise consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo
other financial reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from such
advances.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by
internal credit grade as follows:

2016
EERBEE XHFHUT
& Special Substandard st
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BET T BET T BET T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XFEER Advances to customers
[EPN Personal
— &5 — Mortgages 25,885,478 40,898 987 25,927,363
- EAF — Credit cards 410,212 19 = 410,231
— Efh — Others 11,492,203 18,074 - 11,510,277
NG Corporate
— BEER — Commercial loans 139,339,502 1,844,628 2,556 141,186,686
—E5mE — Trade finance 7,453,678 61,053 = 7,514,731
184,581,073 1,964,672 3,543 186,549,288
St Trade bills 5,665,154 = - 5,665,154
190,246,227 1,964,672 3,543 192,214,442
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4, TEREAERERE(®)
41 EERR (&)
(B) HEZHREMEE (&)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(a) FERERBHE N (&) (a)  Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)
2015
HEME RKAIAT
A% Special  Substandard #Er
Pass mention or below Total
BT AT BEET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEE Advances to customers
& A Personal
— %15 — Mortgages 23,676,398 23,002 1,265 23,700,665
— BEAFR — Credit cards 653,134 87 = 653,221
— Efh — Others 9,740,662 17,864 72 9,758,598
NG Corporate
— FEER — Commercial loans 113,588,886 1,407,580 285 114,996,751
- E5mE — Trade finance 5,959,307 99,892 = 6,059,199
153,618,387 1,548,425 1,622 155,168,434
BH5EE Trade bills 14,072,143 = - 14,072,143
167,690,530 1,548,425 1,622 169,240,577

EERX2BEMER BEREBREHTARALE
BURERX  BEUEERWFR RE] HAT  75a]
BRIFREERR ERDPIIT -
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The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in
impairment loss where the advances are fully collateralised. While
such advances are of “substandard” or lower grades, they are
regarded as not being impaired and have been included in the above

tables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed

as follows:

2016
3EAE 618 A 18
BHE3EA TEB6MEA TEBIF
H T Overdue for Overdue for B
Overdue six months  one year BBI1F
for three or less but or less but Overdue for
months or  over three over six over one #Et
less months months year Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEPEW Advances to customers
A Personal
— %18 - Mortgages 214,590 4,298 1,478 30,167 250,533
- AR ~ Credit cards 16,847 - - - 16,847
— Htt - Others 32,829 664 559 517 34,569
AA] Corporate
- BEEN — Commercial loans 246,822 1,743 4,998 - 253,563
- BImME — Trade finance 6,722 1,225 - - 7,947
517,810 7,930 7,035 30,684 563,459
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4. EHMmEAKRER (&) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FERKE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAEMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(b)  EEHKBEEEZ (&) (b)  Advances overdue but not impaired (Cont’d)
2015
w1 HA AR 1B BB R
3@ AE 6f& A 18
BH3EA THEBEEA TEBIF
LA~ Overdue for  Overdue for 8 HA
Overdue  six months one year HBF
for three or less but or less but  Overdue for
months or  over three over six over one et
less months months year Total
BT BT T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REER Advances to customers
@A Personal
— 218 - Mortgages 191,087 20 1,635 292 193,034
- EAR — Credit cards 51,944 = = = 51,944
— Hit ~ Others 56,076 3,983 - 2,892 62,951
NG Corporate
- BEER — Commercial loans 77,734 = = 17,384 95,118
- E5mE — Trade finance 18,863 6,201 - 1,207 26,271
395,704 10,204 1,635 21,775 429,318
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)
Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by

product type as follows:

2016 2015
BHETE B @mME
HWER Market FEN=E 7N Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— %15 - Mortgages 41,144 36,522 62,357 77,392
- =R+ — Credit cards 13,968 = 26,983 =
— Hfh — Others 5,074 12,021 5,835 1,147
NG| Corporate
N — Commercial loans 534,477 236,903 487,540 231,164
— BESmE — Trade finance 73,552 1,920 56,307 1,071
668,215 287,366 639,022 310,774
BMEMEREL 2 Impairment allowances made in
SHE XS respect of such advances 474,566 434,377
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEMBEERARBENTFERZ Current market value of collateral held against
HIR G E the covered portion of such advances to customers 287,366 310,774
T EERMEBEE 9 Covered portion of such advances to customers 113,048 230,073
Fug BB RE =N Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 555,167 408,949
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4. SRERERE &

41 FERRE(E)

(B) HEHRAMEE ()

©  BEEH (&)
WEEFEDEZE LRER ERREE.

M20165F12A318 R BREBEZE S EE (20155 ¢
#£) o

7N

BESBRIREZEFERSFTAOT :

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances (Cont’d)

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the

value of collateral in respect of such advances.

As at 31 December 2016, there were no impaired trade bills (2015:
Nil).

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
2016 2015

BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

BESBRIBEZ TP ERER Gross classified or impaired advances to customers 740,215 684,698
BESHIRBECRFERERE Gross classified or impaired advances to customers as a
HEP BN X percentage of gross advances to customers 0.39% 0.44%
F il B R R BT AR 2 R E 2 Individually assessed impairment allowances made in
respect of such advances 474,147 433,567

BEDHIRMEZEFEREEERAEEEREE
DR NRARS - TRB] K [EE ] ERRERIFES
B &K
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Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances
which are either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss”
under the Group’s classification of loan quality, or individually
assessed to be impaired.
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4. ETERERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FFERE(H) 4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) HEFRAEMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) AR E3E A 2 B (d) Advances overdue for more than three months
BHBIEA 2 ERBEITWT : The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months

is analysed as follows:

2016 2015
HEFER HEFER
WEHDHL WEEH DL
% of gross % of gross
£ % advances to £ %  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
XEERBEE BEai: Gross advances to customers which
have been overdue for:
— BBE3EAR — six months or less but over
T E6(E H three months 205,766 0.11% 102,053 0.06%
— BiBEeE AR — one year or less but over
TEBiB1F six months 121,647 0.07% 320,702 0.21%
— BiB1F — over one year 339,655 0.18% 203,026 0.13%
mEERIE3MEA 2 E XK Advances overdue for over
three months 667,068 0.36% 625,781 0.40%
Bt B BRAERE BIFT 2 Individually assessed impairment
RE 2 allowances made in respect of such
advances 421,834 412,534
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
HEMBERARBENEFERZ Current market value of collateral held against
@ E the covered portion of such advances to customers 320,355 313,983
LM EERMBECRFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 136,249 228,914
LR BRI RBEECRFER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 530,819 396,867
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4. SRERERE &
41 FERRE(E)

(B) HEHRAMEE ()

() BEEENEAZEZ (F)

BHERIREEFNERREIBZRERRARER
ATHEREENREREEET BEAREFPET
MEERIBYE -

M2016F12A8318 A A HEE3EA 2B S EiE
(20154 - 4&) o

(e) AEHEN

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months (Cont’d)

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally
represented by charges over business assets such as commercial
and residential premises for corporate loans and mortgages over
residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2016, there were no trade bills overdue for more
than three months (2015: Nil).

(e) Rescheduled advances

2016 2015
HEFER HEFEX
BEHDHE BWEEHDLL
% of gross % of gross
£ % advances to £ %  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
KERRFERFHA Rescheduled advances to
(BEReER [#H customers net of amounts included
HBA3E A ZER] #5) in [Advances overdue for more
than three months | 2,292 0.00% 1,329 0.00%

REAERTIIEE KA E 7 B R R 2 2 B ) 0 33
BRMEETRBERERERAS 2ER - BFTE
REtdlirzges8@ERMNBEEB3EA  REE
EaiEE3EA 2 &R "o
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Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been
restructured or renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial
position of the borrower or of the inability of the borrower to meet
the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled advances, which
have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than
three months”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry

sector is based on the categories with reference to the completion

e instructions for the HKMA return of loans and advances.
2016
ER@Z
Hity
KHREE @RIz ARAMHEZ
EF ZBSH REEHE  RAEERE
EXBE %covered HBELE Individually Collectively
Gross by collateral R A assessed  assessed
advances to orother  Classified @HE  impairment impairment
customers security or impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BETT BETT BRI BETz  BBTx
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EBEERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEcRE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MERE — Property development 9,395,050 6.41% - - - 21,917
- MELKE — Property investment 10,775,101 84.72% 29,680 26,154 762 94,939
- eRE ~ Financial concerns 11,037,686 3.70% - - - 23,910
- BERTEE — Wholesale and retail trade 8,029,810 43.50% 75,789 102,065 52,168 53,357
— BlE% - Manufacturing 8,334,113 20.75% 35,676 33,786 15,582 31,662
- BHREHHE — Transport and transport equipment 5,973,029 11.14% - 360 = 39,465
— REES — Recreational activities 3,437 29.82% - - - 18
- BB — Information technology 2,272,628 1.14% - - - 4,733
- Eft - Others 12,915,062 56.98% 10,631 47,460 5,528 71,099
A Individuals
- BERERERERE — Loans for the purchase of flats
TARBLEER in Home Ownership Scheme,
FERBEEEAR Private Sector Participation
HERFLER Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 293,571 99.79% 751 9,536 - 210
- BEEMEENEL — Loans for purchase of other
BER residential properties 13,105,671 99.93% 6,995 84,233 - 6,049
— Hfth - Others 8,782,704 71.29% 1,864 28,094 186 5,058
EBEER 2 ERER Total loans for use in Hong Kong 90,917,862 47.37% 161,386 331,688 74,226 352,417
ZomE Trade finance 7,596,230 23.78% 75,083 81,499 58,242 42,275
EBEIMER 2 B Loans for use outside Hong Kong 89,266,870 37.67% 503,746 795,102 341,679 457,685
REENGE Gross advances to customers 187,780,962 41.81% 740,215 1,208,289 474,147 852,377
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4. THREABEE®) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FERRE (4 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAEMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(f) EEEHERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) RITEN B RPERBE (&) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)
2015
HERmK
Hit
HREZ EREIE 2 HAEFE
®P 2B RELEE  OREERE
BREE  %covered HENE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross by collateral JORE assessed assessed
advances to orother  Classified ®E impairment  impairment
customers security  or impaired Overdue  allowances  allowances
BETT BETT A%Tr AETr AETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEEAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEsRE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER — Property development 5,448,761 15.36% = = = 14,435
- MEKE ~ Property investment 10,849,282 92.84% 29,794 24,466 = 110,979
A ~ Financial concerns 4,497,199 9.53% - - - 9,638
- RELL ~ Stockbrokers 480 100.00% = = = 4
- HERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 9,251,574 30.74% 87,956 103,927 65,156 69,887
- BE% - Manufacturing 8,523,132 23.30% 30,691 34,384 19,210 36,657
- BHREHHE — Transport and transport equipment 4,316,243 7.66% = 360 = 13,381
— KBEE — Recreational activities 141,637 0.76% 294
- BARR - Information technology 741,295 2.40% 2,634 4,839 1,309 1,803
— HEffy - Others 14,315,090 42.23% 19,729 25,474 16,498 71,945
A Individuals
- BERERERENE — Loans for the purchase of flats
IARE2RER in Home Ownership Scheme,
TERAEEERE Private Sector Participation
HERFIER Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 364,199 99.88% 1,501 8,736 - 241
- BEHEMEENEL ~ Loans for purchase of other
R residential properties 12,304,337 99.86% 648 53,917 - 5,401
— Hfr - Others 7,338,950 56.81% 2,461 27,195 1,410 4,712
EBEER 2 ERER Total loans for use in Hong Kong 78,092,179 50.43% 175,414 283,298 103,583 339,377
BoBE Trade finance 6,141,777 33.44% 68,558 78,781 49,162 46,830
EBBUIMER 2 ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 72,002,818 39.30% 440,726 667,966 280,822 565,129
RPERAE Gross advances to customers 156,236,774 44.63% 684,698 1,030,045 433,567 951,336
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4. SRERERE & 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
41 FERRE () 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) HEFRAEMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) EEEHERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(i) RITEN B RPERBE (&) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

RS R BE T RRERS REFHMBETEN R

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income

FRBEERET statement, and classified or impaired loans written off during the
year are shown below:
2016 2015
M EDE WiHEE D8
R DIEEEX M2 OREER
WEEE Classified BB LR Classified
New or impaired New  or impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances  written off allowances written off
BT T BT T BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEBERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITrertsE Industrial, commercial and financial
— MEER — Property development 3,334 2,497 = =
— MERE — Property investment 2,629 1,351 1,201 2,279
— SR — Financial concerns = = 1,116 =
—BERTEXE — Wholesale and retail trade 8,723 8,891 58,030 8,634
— BUEHE — Manufacturing 1,885 409 8,405 12,015
— BERERRE — Transport and transport
equipment 1,307 236 - -
— REE S — Recreational activities - - 55 =
— BB — Information technology 246 1,386 415 =
— Efh — Others 175 833 36,413 25,400
& A Individuals
- BEEREREEE — Loans for the purchase of flats
LARBLEREE in Home Ownership Scheme,
AEIRAEERRE Private Sector Participation
TEBFZEN Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme - - - -
- BEHMEEMEZ — Loans for purchase of other
B residential properties = = 223 =
— Efh — Others 12,829 13,658 14,413 16,002
ERBERzEREE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 31,128 29,261 120,271 64,330
BIRE Trade finance 38,946 8,132 85,798 91,386
ERBAIMER 2 EH Loans for use outside Hong Kong 620,538 464,549 935,173 992,314
REERBE Gross advances to customers 690,612 501,942 1,141,242 1,148,030
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4. SRERERE &

41 FERE(E)

(B) HEHRAMEE ()

H  EBEPEXELE (&)

(iy ZHEEEIEIRFPEREE

TIEREFERZMBRENTERERSHHF
ZFrEd YEERRREBERR - EXPERZE
RAMEERTFAEL TR ARERFEEEZR
AZFIE -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(i) Geograpbhical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is
based on the locations of the counterparties, after taking into
account the transfer of risk. For an advance to customer guaranteed
by a party situated in a country different from the customer, the risk
will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

EFERAE Gross advances to customers

2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
e Hong Kong 99,595,734 88,083,058
AR At Mainland of China 78,467,343 61,013,223
HApb Others 9,717,885 7,140,493
187,780,962 156,236,774

REFERAEMFEAGTMHZ Collectively assessed impairment allowances in

WIEERE respect of the gross advances to customers

BB Hong Kong 399,995 426,019
R A Mainland of China 414,707 452,571
H A, Others 37,675 72,746
852,377 951,336
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) EEEHERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) BB RHS B EFERERE (&) (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BHER Overdue advances
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 303,149 276,118
AR A D Mainland of China 895,663 739,435
H Al Others 9,477 14,492
1,208,289 1,030,045
T & RIEE B G Z R EEE Individually assessed impairment allowances in
respect of the overdue advances
B Hong Kong 36,869 51,497
R A Mainland of China 412,222 368,279
Hh Others 301 436
449,392 420,212
RAREREASTEZREESE Collectively assessed impairment allowances in
respect of the overdue advances
B Hong Kong 3,105 3,741
H B i Mainland of China 12,749 3,183
H A Others 134 56
15,988 6,980
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4, TEREAERERE(®)

41 EERR (&)

(B) HEMREMKE (F)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) EEEHERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(ii) BB RHS B EFERERE (&) (if) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BESEIREER Classified or impaired advances
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 121,649 131,490
AR A D Mainland of China 617,750 552,753
H Al Others 816 455
740,215 684,698
BB ED EHREERE Individually assessed impairment allowances in
& B FEfh 2 B EHE respect of the classified or impaired advances
B Hong Kong 37,167 59,480
el Mainland of China 436,679 373,651
Hh Others 301 436
474,147 433,567
REEDERBEERE Collectively assessed impairment allowances in
HEFTEHZREEE respect of the classified or impaired advances
B Hong Kong 705 1,043
A B A b Mainland of China 731 1,187
1,436 2,230
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

Q) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of

collateral held as security. The nature and carrying value of these

assets held as at 31 December are summarised as follows:

2016 2015

BET T BT T

HK$°000 HK$'000

EEXES Commercial properties 592 4,251
T Industrial properties - 80,250
FEWE Residential properties 1,031 13,968
1,623 98,469

REBEMN2016F12A3 1A FENREEE 2HE
575 #109,837,0007T (20154 : 7 #122,509,000
TL) o EBEAEE BB EAINGEE xS E
M (BBEREEFREFERILEFREETR
A3 M ¥ B RA BB HEIT 2 H I 5 R -

BREAENERENEIP LN KE
ARSI B2 38 :

i)

HHZ B

— HEHEER

- EREREE-—HHEER

- ZHEKEE

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group
as at 31 December 2016 amounted to HK$109,837,000 (2015:
HK$122,509,000). The repossessed assets comprise properties in
respect of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g.
through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the

borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash,

the Group may consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

- selling the loans together with the assets

- arranging loan restructuring
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4, TEREAERERE(®)
41 EERR (&)
(D) FERITREMEBEENESR R

TRAERTREMESBEENIFAHSREZE
#R M IFRI2 A31 B IRFF RS 2R R DT -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements
with banks and other financial institutions that are neither overdue
nor impaired as at 31 December by rating agency designation.

2016
A3
AaaZA3 Lower EETR st
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BETT BETR BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AR ERTT Central banks 18,761,393 = - 18,761,393
SRITRH b B E Banks and other financial

institutions 23,417,390 11,734,600 12,532,312 47,684,302

42,178,783 11,734,600 12,532,312 66,445,695

2015
A3LA T

AaaZE A3 Lower iy 4a =t

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

SR T BT T BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R ERAT Central banks 16,038,647 = - 16,038,647
SRITRH M & pEE Banks and other financial

institutions 23,767,541 17,650,869 3,250,385 44,668,795

39,806,188 17,650,869 3,250,385 60,707,442

K2016F12A31H A BAMBSBECRITREMES
R RE AL R R 17 R (20154 1 £ ) o
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As at 31 December 2016, there were no overdue or impaired
balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
(2015: Nil).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of
debt securities and certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the

absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers
are reported.

2016
AL

Aa1ZAa3 A1ZA3 Lower E @t

Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT BETT BT BETT BT T BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At EES Available-for-sale securities 13,616,860 23,809,336 15,150,997 7,729,268 9,791,483 70,097,944

REZIHAES Held-to-maturity securities 207,630 1,856,312 = = - 2,063,942

SRR EYH Loans and receivables = 842,909 397,410 - 3519496 4,759,815
DNAEEET AEEZ Financial assets at fair value

TREE through profit or loss 3,233,647 205,116 241,638 = = 3,680,401

17,058,137 26,713,673 15,790,045 7,729,268 13,310,979 80,602,102

2015
A3LAT

Aal1ZEAa3 AEA3 Lower EIE mast

Aaa  Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BET T BT BT T BT BT BET T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A S Available-for-sale securities 3814391 27,409,836 16,575,057 1,781,530 2,298,167 51,878,981

REZRINAES Held-to-maturity securities 208,732 2,257,798 = - - 2,466,530

ERRERZ Loans and receivables - = 585,792 = = 585,792
NAEELET ABEE 2 Financial assets at fair value

SREE through profit or loss - 6,714,292 249,280 = - 6,963,572

4,023,123 36,381,926 17,410,129 1,781,530 2,298,167 61,894,875
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont’d)

The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and

certificates of deposit neither overdue nor impaired as at 31
December by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the

ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2016
AL

Aa1ZAa3 A1ZA3 Lower E @t

Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT BETT BT BETT BT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At EES Available-for-sale securities 13,616,860 23,809,336 15,150,997 7,729,268 9,791,483 70,097,944

REZIHAES Held-to-maturity securities 207,630 1,856,312 = = - 2,063,942

BN e Loans and receivables = 842,909 397,410 = = 1,240,319
DNAEEET AEEZ Financial assets at fair value

TREE through profit or loss 3,233,647 205,116 241,638 = = 3,680,401

17,058,137 26,713,673 15,790,045 7,729,268 9,791,483 77,082,606

2015
A3LAT

Aal1ZEAa3 AEA3 Lower EIE mast

Aaa  Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT T BT BT T BT BT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A S Available-for-sale securities 3814391 27,409,836 16,575,057 1,781,530 2,298,167 51,878,981

REZRINAES Held-to-maturity securities 208,732 2,257,798 = - - 2,466,530

ERRERZ Loans and receivables - = 585,792 = = 585,792
NAEELET ABEE 2 Financial assets at fair value

SREE through profit or loss - 6,714,292 249,280 = - 6,963,572

4,023,123 36,381,926 17,410,129 1,781,530 2,298,167 61,894,875
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont’d)

The following tables present an analysis of impaired debt securities
by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

2016
REE
Carrying values

He: gt

HEEE

Of which

AL T accumulated

Aa1ZAa3 AZA3 Lower T #5  impairment

Aaa Aa1to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total  allowances

BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ER R Loans and receivables - - - - 351949 3,519,496 15,424
Hep: 2R EER 0Of which accumulated

impairment allowances - - - - 15,424 15,424

M2016F 128318 RARBZHERERIEBEZ
BB ES R ERE-

K2015F12A31H 8B RESE 2 EHESH LT

b5
TAEL °©

As at 31 December 2016, there were no impaired certificates of
deposit and no overdue debt securities and certificates of deposit.

As at 31 December 2015, there were no impaired or overdue debt
securities or certificates of deposit
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the
value of foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity
positions held by the Group due to the volatility of financial market
price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price, commodity
price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve
a balance between risk and return.

The Group's objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy
growth of the treasury business, by effective management of
potential market risk in the Group’s business, according to the
Group's overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on
the basis of a well-established risk management regime and related
management measures.

In accordance with the Group's corporate governance principles
in respect of risk management, the Board and Risk Management
Committee, Senior Management and functional units perform
their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market
risk. The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior
Management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently
monitoring the market risk profile and compliance of management
policies and limits of the Group, to ensure that the aggregate and
individual market risks are within acceptable levels. Independent
units are assigned to monitor the risk exposure against risk limits
on a daily basis, together with profit and loss reports submitted to
Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit excess will be
reported to Senior Management at once when it occurs. NCB (China)
sets up independent risk monitoring teams to monitor daily market
risk and limit compliance, and submit management information and
reports to the Bank on a regular basis.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control market risk. Major risk indicators and
limits include but not limited to VAR (Value-at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open
Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value). To
meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are
classified into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management
Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee or Senior
Management respectively. Treasury business units are required to
conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and
limits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market
risks to the Risk Management Committee and Senior Management
on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation
model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of
historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and
sets up the VAR limit of the Group and the Bank.

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk
exposure' of the Group.

R12A31E 25KREHE 2FE8E 2FVHUE

F At Minimum for  Maximum for ~ Average for
Year 31 December the year the year the year
BETT BT BB T BB T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2HmIEmE 2 EBE VAR for all market risk 2016 2,008 466 2,670 1,615
2015 939 559 1,387 861
Rk BRE VAR for foreign exchange risk 2016 1,998 354 2,675 1,535
2015 714 463 1,398 820
AR 2 BB (B VAR for interest rate risk 2016 215 145 723 348
2015 225 53 301 176
7] m L B 2 R B 2 VAR for commodity risk 2 2016 - = 128 44
2015 - - - -
G Note:
u N EIEINEAB MR O & E R E - 1 Structural FX positions have been excluded.
2 B mES RO AR20164511 A 2 Position in commodity since Nov-2016.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR (Cont’d)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed
in the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating
future events may not encompass all potential events,
particularly those which are extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all
positions can be liquidated or hedged in one day. This may
not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of severe
illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient
to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not
take into account losses that might occur beyond this level of
confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding
at the close of business and therefore does not necessarily
reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test
indicators and limits to assess and manage the market risk not
covered by VAR. The market risk stress testing includes sensitivity
testing on changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity,
as well as scenario analysis on historical events including the 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(B) Currency risk

The Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in major
currencies, particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi.
To ensure the currency risk exposure of the Group is managed at an
acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to
serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise
the gap between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign
exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps) are usually used to manage
FX risk associated with foreign currency-denominated assets and
liabilities.

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency
exposures arising from trading, non-trading and structural positions
and is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of foreign currency position.

2016
BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
Hgsh ¥ Shk R

Other Total

ET AR foreign foreign

US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

REEE Spot assets 89,820,749 116,285,504 8,951,419 215,057,672
REBE Spot liabilities (73,408,148) (114,083,563) (6,962,887) (194,454,598)
EHIEA Forward purchases 24,235,532 18,169,822 2,851,778 45,257,132
RAIEY Forward sales (38,954,759) (20,994,854) (4,819,645) (64,769,258)
&/ (R)BFE Net long/(short) position 1,693,374 (623,091) 20,665 1,090,948
HEBEEREE Net structural position 121,810 8,554,006 - 8,675,816
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42 THIERAK (&) 4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(B) SMNEREFE (&) (B)  Currency risk (Cont’d)
2015
BT ITEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
E b o HNEE 4B 28
Other Total
e AR foreign foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 62,789,261 105,966,748 14,036,470 182,792,479
RE&E Spot liabilities (56,280,126) (96,346,613) (10,103,847) (162,730,586)
RHIE A Forward purchases 23,762,419 7,770,358 2,767,918 34,300,695
REHE N Forward sales (28,585,949) (17,344,597) (6,688,061) (52,618,607)
REBFEE Net long position 1,685,605 45,896 12,480 1,743,981
EREERBEE Net structural position 293,056 8,431,220 = 8,724,276

©  FIFEmEE (©

MEEBEEERNEKY EERGHMREBSER
AR AL EHRITEBRENLHEEEAT
BR - AEENFIERBRAEEIERGABILERE -
REMEFENIZNEEARENS:

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank'’s earnings and economic
value arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of
the bank’s asset and liability positions. The Group's interest rate risk
exposures are mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk

from structural positions are:

- MEEATEE : EEEAENIHRANERE =
R HABR AT RE SR AT - o T 2 05 A B A

—  AxmeRk TRZSNEEEETE S -
AEMUSERME KR AT R — &
ST{E S B3P B TR R A0 B

- Yookt 3 AR LB P O AR R AR SR AT R =
BBmMEENERASREBEELAER
&%

- BEFEERR AREE BFENKRINERK -

RE R SRRTENSNEEREEXE
EAREIR
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Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing
periods of assets and liabilities that may affect net interest
income;

Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions
resulting that the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may
change by different amounts within the same repricing
period,;

Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may
have an adverse impact on net interest income or economic
value; and

Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets,
liabilities or off-balance sheet items that can cause a change
in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group's risk management framework applies also to interest rate
risk management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with the
“Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved
by Risk Management Committee. Financial Management Division is
responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation
of the Treasury Division, Financial Management Division assists the
Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform day-to-
day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not
limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of
methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of
target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and
limits, and submission of interest rate risk management reports to
the Management and Risk Management Committee.

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and
limits include, but are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk,
duration, price value of a basis point (“PVBP"), net interest income
sensitivity ratio (“NIl”), economic value sensitivity ratio (“EV").
The indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which are
approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Deputy General Manager of Middle-
office respectively. Risk-taking business units are required to conduct
their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits.
Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the
relevant departments are required to go through a risk assessment
process, which includes the assessment of underlying interest rate
risk and consideration of the adequacy of current risk monitoring
mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted during
the risk assessment process will be submitted to Risk Management
Committee for approval.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the
Group’s net interest income and capital base. They are the Group's
key interest rate risk indicators. The former assesses the impact of
interest rate movement on net interest income as a percentage to
the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses
the impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the
net present value of cash flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a percentage
to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the Risk Management
Committee on these two indicators to monitor and control the
Group's banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the
banking book interest rate risk that the Group would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also
used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage
loans.

The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and
Renminbi in terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2016,
if HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi market interest rates had a
100 basis point parallel upward shift of the yield curve in relevant
currency with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net
interest income over a twelve-month period and on reserves for the
Group would have been as follows:
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

R12H318 H AR K124 A
FEANEBRANSE
Impact on net interest
income over the next R12A31BEREEHNEE
Impact on reserves
at 31 December

twelve months
at 31 December

2016 2015 2016 2015

BET T BT BET T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT HK Dollar 344,852 298,266 (145,477) (79,004)
e US Dollar (65,468) (74,762)  (239,489)  (114,872)
ARE Renminbi (109,140) (39,332)  (283,703)  (301,279)

Bt B R R B A RO B 8 IE T R E E2015F
P EEHN ARG E0EHIERN X GURE Bk Q&R
FrEte B At EE SR RS R TTER
100fE &% Tt R B ER I M RERFERD
FEERADIEESR20155F B MR ABTRETER
MGz AR EESREE -

bPgREEERSARE  EhEE (BTRR)
TERE - BRSNS E D MEBIEEI(L  FIEFIT
BB RET K AR IR N 2 R g AT AR SR ER HO 4% B L fa
T EhENARY - EREBFEIHER
I EREBFTREAESNEFRABERIIA LY
B2 EmiE ERR - bRk R AR EEER
MR —#

The overall positive impact on net interest income of the above
currencies has decreased when compared with 2015 and is mainly
because of the widened short term negative gaps in Renminbi.
Reserves would have been reduced because of the expected
reduction in valuation of available-for-sale securities due to a parallel
shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The reduction of
reserves is increased compared with 2015 because the sizes of HK
Dollar and US Dollar available-for-sale securities in capital market are
increased.

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on
several assumptions, including but not limited to the change in the
correlation between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel
movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that would be
taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness
of hedge accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity,
behavioural assumptions of products in which actual repricing
date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
Group's overall interest rate risk exposures.
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The tables below summarise the Group's on-balance sheet exposure
to interest rate risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing date and maturity date.

2016
Fit8
-BAR —-Z=flf =Et=fA -ZH% RENE Non-
Up to 1to3 3t0 12 1to5 Over interest- @zt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BET T BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ERREREMRTR Cash and balances with banks and
Hir e g as other finandial institutions 50,470,449 - - - - 1,857,134 52,327,583
GERITREMEREE—Z  Placements with banks and other financial
+=EARESAZELHHER  institutions maturing between one and
twelve months - 4,552,714 10,126,985 - - - 14,679,699
ARERE NBEZ Financial assets at fair value through
EREE profit or loss 210443 2,217,212 1,252,746 - - - 3,680,401
TESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 896,476 896,476
ERREMRE Advances and other accounts 126,655,688 26,491,174 34,357,922 4,455,523 157,070 2,215 192,119,592
LRRE Financial investments
— W& - Available-for-sale 11,387,979 15,290,801 20,667,974 22,009,605 741,585 13,381 70,111,325
o ~ Held-to-maturity - 475,559 426,416 1,161,967 = = 2,063,942
- ERREYGK - Loans and receivables 115,373 - 1461965 3,182,477 - - 4759815
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 383,830 383,830
W% SMRRE Properties, plant and equipment = - - = = 6,929,407 6,929,407
HtEE Other assets
(ARETHIBEE) (including deferred tax assets) = = = = = 980,639 980,639
BEAHE Total assets 188,839,932 49,027,460 68,294,008 30,809,572 898,655 11,063,082 348,932,709
B& Liabilities
RITRAMSREE L Deposits and balances from banks and
TR R other financial institutions 12,774,352 5311595 11,947,531 - - 416,732 30,450,210
RAEELHABRL Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHMARE profit or loss 1,880,498 816,180 526,778 - - - 3,223,456
fTESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - - = = = 934,244 934,244
BPEH Deposits from customers 143254320 48,321,171 46,879,361 1,631,983 - 17,440,695 257,527,530
BEMTEBEZRFAE Debt securities and certificates of deposit
in issue - - 541,378 554,559 - - 1,095,937
HiBRA R & (BHEENFIE Other accounts and provisions (including
REEFBEER) current and deferred tax liabilities) 8,046,649 804,515 1,839,269 22,513 5,615 6,297,803 17,016,364
BELE Total liabilities 165,955,819 55,253,461 61,734,317 2,209,055 5615 25,089,474 310,247,741
FIRGRE D Interest sensitivity gap 22,884,113 (6,226,001) 6,559,691 28,600,517 893,040  (14,026,392) 38,684,968
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4. SRERERE (&) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
42 TEERE (E) 4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
©Q FIEREE (& (C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
2015
—f@AR —Z==fA =%+=fEA —ZRF AFRE TEE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 Tto5 Over5  Non-interest- 5t
1 month months months years years bearing Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ERRS REHBRITR Cash and balances with banks and
A e mgma other finanial institutions 50,565,792 - - - - 3,679,013 54,244,805
ERTREMEHEBE—Z  Placements with banks and other financial
TZEARESAZEHBFER  institutions maturing between one and
twelve months - 3,157,041 3,899,744 - - - 7,056,785
ARER{EABRZ Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 1,762,994 2,479,360 2,471,938 249,280 - - 6,963,572
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 696,266 696,266
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts 107,765,185 28,446,478 27,748,294 4,792,519 171,538 - 168,924,014
SRRE Financial investments
- AREE - Available-for-sale 8,601,020 10,455,974 14,442,944 18,494,300 356,810 4,613 52,355,661
- FEZHEHA ~ Held-to-maturity = = 298,771 2,167,759 = = 2,466,530
- BERRERHK ~ Loans and receivables 182,257 48,142 355,393 - - - 585,792
BREME Investment properties - - - - = 414,736 414,736
nE- BN REE Properties, plant and equipment = = = = = 7,008,020 7,008,020
B E (RERRR Other assets (including current and
ELRBEE) deferred tax assets) 31 - - - = 4,347,852 4,347,883
FHEEE Assets held for sale = = = = = 132,729 132,729
BEAE Total assets 168,877,279 44,586,995 49,217,084 25,703,858 528,348 16,283,229 305,196,793
g& Liabilities
RIRAMSREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
TRk other financial institutions 19,054,571 2,501,295 6,689,467 - - 2715841 30,961,174
ARERE NBEZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHMARE profit or loss 1,084,486 1,907,861 1,583,009 - - - 4,575,356
fTESBMTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 302,944 302,944
RERR Deposits from customers 135,919,721 34,269,925 30,101,149 5,512,157 - 12,459,031 218,261,983
HHBRIE R & (BHEENHIA Other accounts and provisions (including
REEREERE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 1,666,422 2,713,701 6,158,633 454913 19,427 2,961,586 13,974,682
FHEEEZIEBEE Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale - - - - - 21,884 21,884
BELE Total liabilities 157,725,200 41,392,782 44,532,258 5,967,070 19,427 18,461,286 268,098,023
FEGRE RO Interest sensitivity gap 11,152,079 3,194,213 4,684,826 19,736,788 508,921 (2,178,057) 37,098,770
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds
to grow assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an
unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite
to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet
liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios;
and to survive with net positive cumulative cash flow in extreme
scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the lender of last
resort.

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively
manage the liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with
reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound
operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers
are the Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and
sufficient source of funds are in place, the Group actively attracts
new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary
funding from the interbank market. According to different term
maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed
scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans,
bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient
liquid assets which provides adequate funds in support of normal
business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable
cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is
committed to diversify the source of funds and the use of funds to
avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent
triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when
problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group
has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to
manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the
Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The
Group also pays attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-
balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments and derivatives.
The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover
the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk
arising from other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding
contingency plan.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Risk Management Committee (RMC) is the decision-making authority
of liquidity risk management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility
of liquidity risk management. As authorised by RMC, the Asset and
Liability Management Committee (ALCO) exercises its oversight of
liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Financial
Management Division is responsible for overseeing the Group's
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to assist the ALCO
to perform liquidity management functions according to their
specific responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and
limits to identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on
daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are not limited
to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR"), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum
Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO") and liquidity buffer asset
portfolio. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess the Group's
liquidity condition under normal conditions and also performs a
liquidity stress test (including institution specific, general market crisis
and combined crisis) at least on monthly basis to assess the Group's
capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, the Assets
and Liabilities Management System is developed to provide data and
the preparation for regular management reports to facilitate liquidity
risk management duties.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual
LM-2 “Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management”
issued by the HKMA in 2011, the Group has implemented
behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and
stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both
normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under normal
circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-balance
sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance
sheet items (such as loan commitments). According to various
characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items,
the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and
balance sheet changes. The Group establishes MCO indicator which
predicts the future 30 day maximum cumulative net cash outflow
in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to assess if
the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow
gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at
31 December 2016, before taking the cash inflow through the sale
of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank's
30 day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to
HK$457,877,000 (2015: HK$9,723,236,000) and was in compliance
with the internal limit requirements.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market
crisis and combined crisis scenario has been set up, combined
crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific and general
market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more
severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of
retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan
commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency
ratio and rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank
placement and marketable securities. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow under the three
stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet
financing needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group
has a policy in place to maintain a liquidity cushion which includes
high quality or comparable quality marketable securities issued
or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities
or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight
or marketable securities issued or guaranteed by non-financial
corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above
to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31
December 2016, the Bank's liquidity cushion (before haircut) was
HK$28,653,565,000 (2015: HK$29,189,795,000). A contingency
plan is being established which details the conditions to trigger the
plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the
action plans and relevant procedures and responsibility of various
departments.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity)
Rules effective from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified
as category 1 authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to
calculate LCR on consolidated basis. During the year of 2016, the
Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than 70%.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to
request from the Group additional collateral if they have concerns
about the Group's creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products
or business developments. Before launching a new product or
business, the relevant departments are required to go through a risk
assessment process, which includes the assessment of underlying
liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk
management mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk
noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to Risk
Management Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk
management policies. On the basis of the Group's uniform
policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own liquidity
management policies according to its own characteristics, and
assumes its own liquidity risk management responsibility, executes its
daily risk management processes independently, and reports to the
Group’s Management on a regular basis.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(A) Liquidity coverage ratio

2016 FZEHEHEE
2016 quarter ended
12A31H 9H30H 6H30H 3A31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
MEBEBELL R FIHE  Average value of liquidity
coverage ratio 141.78% 165.40% 145.26% 130.84%
2015FEFHER
2015 quarter ended
12A31H 9H30H 6H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
MENMEBEE L ER)TIIE  Average value of liquidity
coverage ratio 120.02% 114.10% 163.68% 123.70%

MBUBEL XN THERENZFTENESEIIE
BRERNRSUEEZLZNEMTFABRREHER
PR & ERRRINANEINERIERFTE -

MEBUBEL R ENGEERTE  WRE RITE
ORBIE)RA) AXRRTREERBEZMERA
MK e

ERARDUBELXHENERER AT RANRITH

Bwww.ncb.com.hkdP [ESE# 55 | — &8I -

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on
the arithmetic mean of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of
each working day in the quarter and the calculation methodology
and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis
which comprises the positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries
specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity)
Rules.

The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures

is available under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank's
website at www.ncb.com.hk.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B) Maturity analysis

The tables below analyse the Group's assets and liabilities as at 31
December into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

EREABR D4R - period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
2016
-fEkR -E=@A ZE+=fA -Z5f RENE
B Up to 1t03 3t012 1t0 5 Over FRERH @t
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BT BET R BRI BT BET R BRI BETR BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EFREREHHETR Cash and balances with banks and
EheRlENLEs other financial institutions 2715971 29,611,612 - - - - - 52,327,583
ERTREMSRERE—Z  Placements with banks and other
TZEARZEZEHER  financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - - 4,552,714 10,126,985 - - - 14,679,699
ARERIEGABEZ Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss
- X5 - Held for trading
- EBES - Debt securities - 210443 2217212 1,011,108 - - - 3438763
- REBUBABEEA - Designated at fair value through
Ba profit or loss
- BHES - Debt securities - - - 241,638 - - - 241,638
fTESBTA Derivative financial instruments 336,361 62,105 150,734 347,276 - - - 896,476
B REMEE Advances and other accounts
- RFER - Advances to customers 6,757,582 6,710,603 10567311 36,092,176 85944627 39,903,860 478279 186,454,438
- 2555 - Trade bills 1780 1,427,406 1,967,532 2,268,436 - - - 5,665,154
SRIRE Financial investments
- MEHE - Available-for-sale
- EHES - Debt securities - 3884572 10733506 9,178,135 22,886,731 739,120 - 47,422,064
- FRE - Certificates of deposit - 4,504,881 11,055 1,612,342 2,778,873 - - 14,907,151
- £t - Others - 1,673,061 1,679,707 4,415,961 - - - 7,768,729
- RBZIHA - Held-to-maturity
- BBES - Debt securities - - 348,456 553519 1,161,967 - - 2063942
~- BRRIEWH - Loans and receivables
- EHES - Debt securities - - - 1,240319 - - - 1,240,319
— Efh - Others 115,373 - 221,646 3,182,471 3,519,496 3,519,496
- RiES - Equity securities 13,381 13,381
REME Investment properties - - - - - - 383,830 383,830
% S REE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 6929407 6,929,407
EpEE (BEERR Other assets (including current and
BRHELE) deferred tax assets) 357,748 328,403 157,587 85,150 (41,271) - 93,022 980,639
BESE Total assets 30,169,442 48528459 32,385,814 73,394,691 115913404 40,642,980 7,897,919 348,932,709
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4. SRERERE & 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 REBESER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(B) FEHDH (& (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2016
-fAR -ZE=@A =ZEt+=fiR -25f RENE
B Up to 1t03 3t0 12 1t05 Over FHREAS At
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total

RETT BT BETT RETT BT RETT BRI BBT R
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

=L Liabilities
ROREMEREEL Deposits and balances from banks and

FRRkES other financial institutions 1,331,420  10457,704 4835461  11,125398 2,700,227 - - 30,450,210
ARERHAERL Financial liabilities at fair value through

tRERE profit or loss - 1,880,498 816,180 526,778 - - - 3,223,456
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments 110,954 25,609 138,511 535,864 123,306 = = 934,244
ZPER Deposits from customers 102,970,686  55417,442 50,119,358 47,365,113 1,654,931 - - 257,521,530
BRETEFESRESE Debt securities and certificates of

deposit in issue - - - 541,378 554,559 - - 1,095,937

AthBRIERER (B Other accounts and provisions (including

EAHBERETHEARE)  current and deferred tax liabilities) 8,633,899 1,373,150 1,181,545 4,878,344 948,759 667 - 17,016,364
SELE Total liabilities 113,046,959 69,154,403 57,091,055 64,972,875 5,981,782 667 - 310,247,741
REESHA Net liquidity gap (82,877,517)  (20,625,944) (24,705241) 8,421,816 109,931,622 40,642,313 7,897,919 38,684,968

145



#19% A% 444 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2016 ANNUAL REPORT 4 3§

www.nch.com.hk

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRERERE (&) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 REBELER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(B) FEIHDH (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2015
—f@AR —Z=@A =Et+=fEA —ERF RERE
HE Upto 1103 3t012 Tto5 Over  THEHRH &5
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BT BETT BT BT BETT BT BB BETT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
EER e REHHRTR Cash and balances with banks and
Hih & EHENLES other financial institutions 13,738,576 31,379,966 - - - - 9126263 54,244,805
EROTREMERBEBE—Z  Placements with banks and other
TZEARIHZEHER  financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - - 3,157,041 3,899,744 - - - 7,056,785
BRI A ERL Financial assets at fair value through
CHEE profit or loss
- R ~ Held for trading
- BHES - Debt securities - 1762994 2479360 2,471,938 - - - 671429
- RERMAAER - Designated at fair value through
ftABR profit or loss
- EBES - Debt securities - - - 2,168 247,112 - - 249,280
(TESRIE Derivative financial instruments 320,134 96,765 21,483 255,610 2274 = = 696,266
B REMEE Advances and other accounts
- RPEX - Advances to customers 5,500,045 7,436,513 14,184,098 36,000,440 61,815,074 29,138,201 777500 154,851,871
- 85%% - Trade bills 7 3,372,536 4,090,506 6,609,094 - - - 14,072,143
SREE Finandial investments
- AfRHE - Available-for-sale
- BBES - Debt securities - 7,295,867 6,428,028 8,657,828 18,096,760 356,810 - 40,835,293
- FRE - Certificates of deposit - 216,318 1,404,198 6404497 3,018,675 = - 11,043,688
- Hft, - Others - 472,067 - - - - - 472,067
- FAZIHA ~ Held-to-maturity
- EBES - Debt securities - - 1,237 299330 2,165,963 - - 266,530
- BERRELH - Loans and receivables
- BBES - Debt securities - 182,257 48,142 355,393 - - - 585,792
- ki EH — Equity securities - - - - - - 4,613 4,613
RENE Investment properties - - - - - = 414,736 414,736
ER G Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 7,008,020 7,008,020
HthEE Other assets (including
(BEELEHEEE) deferred tax assets) 164,183 3,936,533 13,518 134,702 (7,648) - 106,595 4,347,883
HFHERE Assets held for sale - 132,729 - - - - = 132,729
BELE Total assets 19,722,945 56,284,545 31,827,611 65,090,744 85,338,210 29,495,011 17,437,727 305,196,793
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

2015
—f@AR —Z=@A =Et+=fEA —ERf AERE
ki Up to 1103 3012 Tto5 Over THEERH it
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BETT BT AR BETT BETR BETT BT BETT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
FIREMEREREL Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRkES other financial institutions 3,648,010 18,122,402 2,501,295 6,689,467 - - - 30,961,174
ARERIGABRL Finandial liabilities at fair value through
tRERE profit or loss - 1,084,486 1,907,861 1,583,009 - - - 4575356
fIESRIA Derivative financial instruments 103,804 76,539 29,472 73,219 19,910 = - 302,944
ZPER Deposits from customers 90,852,158 55,539,932 34,371,019 31,798,000 5,700,874 - - 218,261,983
EtRERER (B Other accounts and provisions (including
EAHERELHEARE)  crent and deferred tax liabilities) 1,998,248 1,315,194 2,943,651 6,315,257 1,376,345 25,987 - 13,974,682
FHEEREHBAE Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale - 21,884 - - - - - 21,884
BE4E Total liabilities 96,602,220 76,160,437 41,753,298 46,458,952 7,097,129 25,987 - 268,098,023
REESHA Net liquidity gap (76,879,275)  (19,875,892) (9,925,687) 18,631,792 78,241,081 29,469,024 17,431,727 37,098,770

ERBEASRTIER GRITE (WE)RAD) 28
BMigXmmEsE - AEESaSTESEAZEE"
PImERRERESFIN RS EE - HRETR
BRBRANHEECEE RAZEETERBH 2
”%&?ﬁf’ﬁ?ﬁﬁsﬁ°E‘rﬁlﬂiﬂHﬁzﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ

RO EREHZEECEEFRRE  AIHZE

IEEIJEFTEEEHHM o BiiBIRZ BEEMRE
ﬁ*ﬁ%@@’ﬂ%(ﬁﬂﬁ) 2

EHBIHEEEESFZoMERER GRITE
(HFE) M ZHEBIEMEER - FIERETRE
hEBEFBEFAEEHA-

The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance
with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities
which have been overdue for not more than one month as “On
demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is
actually overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that
is not due is reported according to the residual maturity unless the
repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction
of provisions, if any.

The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is
disclosed in order to comply with relevant provisions under the
Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure does not imply that the
securities will be held to maturity.
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(a) FHUTETAZHEER

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Q) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

TERBATAEENI2A3MAZETESRHEEIA The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at

FAERFNBHAN TR 2IRE

31 December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining
contractual maturity.

2016
—-fBAR —E=fAF =ZEt+=f@A —Z1f BENME
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over @zt
1 month months months years 5 years Total

BT BRI BETR BT BET T BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

tRER Financial liabilities
BOREMEEEE 2 Deposits and balances from
TR R banks and other financial
institutions 11,793,677 4,861,160 11,299,739 2,780,866 - 30,735,442
NREZLE ABEZ  Finandal liabilities at fair value
cRER through profit or loss 1,881,000 817,000 529,000 - - 3,227,000
BEEH Deposits from customers 158,435,965 50,246,344 48,055,316 1,728,767 - 258,466,392
BH{TEHEHLFFE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - - 556,295 579,673 - 1,135,968
Ht @B R Other financial liabilities 9,812,259 802,538 4,820,369 62,468 667 15,498,301
SREEAE Total financial liabilities 181,922,901 56,727,042 65,260,719 5,151,774 667 309,063,103
2015
—fAR —E=fAA =E+=fAA —ERF AEMNE
Up to 1103 3to 12 1105 Over FCE
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREAE F Financial liabilities
BANEMELEEE 2 Deposits and balances from
B R banks and other financial
institutions 21,779,006 2,508,618 6,731,882 - - 31,019,506
N EZEE ABREZ  Finandal liabilities at fair value
SRERE through profit or loss 1,084,500 1,908,000 1,583,500 - - 4,576,000
RPRER Deposits from customers 146,416,843 34,462,462 32,206,656 6,056,730 - 219,142,691
Hiemar Other financial liabilities 3,151,954 2,732,681 6,292,647 506,860 26,038 12,710,180
SREEAE Total financial liabilities 172,432,303 41,611,761 46,814,685 6,563,590 26,038 267,448,377
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Q) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by
remaining contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative
financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis, together with all
derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a gross basis
regardless of whether the contract is in an asset or liability position.
The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at fair
value.

The Group's derivative financial instruments that will be settled on
a net basis mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative
financial instruments that will be settled on a gross basis mainly
include currency forwards and currency swaps.

2016
—-@AR —-Z=@A =Zt+=f@A —-Z2RE BENE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over @zt
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BETT BT BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIBRELE Y Derivative financial liabilities
etz 4=t settled on a net basis 220,874 - (8,499) - - 212,375
RRELELEE Derivative financial instruments
TESBIA settled on a gross basis
@i Total inflow 22,242,268 11,910,851 18,004,474 - - 52,157,593
Wit Total outflow (22,210,298)  (13,025,286) (19,871,987) - - (55,107,571)
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4. EHMmEAKRER (&) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 REBELER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(Q EBEXIHAD T ZKITEE LT (&) (C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont’d)
(b) PTETRAZHL 7T (&) (b) Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
2015
—@EAR —Z=EF =Et+-@A —ERE AENE
Upto 1t03 3t0 12 1105 Over et
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RFERELE Y Derivative financial liabilities
fTEemaRE settled on a net basis (104,510) (2,043) (17,962) (8,160) = (132,675)
RRBEELE Y Derivative financial instruments
fTESMIA settled on a gross basis
FENUN Total inflow 22,039,048 7,838,682 13,446,442 75,357 - 43,399,529
B Total outflow (22,024,752) (7,850,203)  (13,357,472) (75,249) - (43,307,676)
(c) BEAREXINEH (c) Off-balance sheet items

B FORfE

EHAAEBR2016F12A3MBEMBRFAZERE
BEREMBEZRIISBHMIE EANSEASDE
91,641,576,0007T (20154 : /& #86,380,519,000
U0 W EEFEERT R —FRRER -

MBEREEMMERE

AEBR2016512A31 8 2 B B R & H 4th B 7
mh & 4 %8 A8 #35,050,400,0007T (20154 : 78 #&
36,313,017,0007T) ' ERHR DR —%F -
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Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet
financial instruments as at 31 December 2016 that the Group
commits to extend credit to customers and other facilities totalled
HK$91,641,576,000 (2015: HK$86,380,519,000). Those loan
commitments can be drawn within one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2016 totalled HK$35,050,400,000 (2015:
HK$36,313,017,000) are maturing no later than one year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to
maximise total shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital
adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk profile. The
ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts
the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance
among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework
of policies and controls on capital management to support the
development of the Group's business and to meet the statutory
capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital
adequacy. The Group has complied with all the statutory capital
requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in respect of
banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based
("FIRB”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for
the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and the internal
ratings-based (securitisation) approach to calculate the credit risk
capital charge for its securitisation exposures. A small residual credit
exposures are remained under the standardised (credit risk) (“STC")
approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit valuation
adjustment (“CVA") method to calculate the capital charge for the
CVA risk of the counterparty.

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM") approach
to calculate the general market risk capital charge for foreign
exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the approval from
the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions pursuant to section
317C of the Banking (Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market
risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt the standardised
(market risk) (“STM") approach to calculate the market risk capital
charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk)
("STO") approach to calculate the operational risk capital charge.

151



#1178 #4444 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2016 ANNUAL REPORT 4

www.nch.com.hk

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, TEREAERERE(®)
44 EXERE ()

AEER2016FEBIRA NI E AT R AV HIZ AT
EEEREERRTMIEERERF] ANEX-
R ERYE MRS ABEAT BT HRERF
IgﬁﬁDXEWEE%—S‘ZHT?RE‘E%‘JZ}E’“?%E’J
BEXRBABHENERN  EMREAEERZEE
PRAE—REARLLE  RE—RERL R R REE éﬂi
o2 o [RIBS - AN SR [E TRt Al A 1 B AR B KRR GE T B AR
BE UXHEHFERFERIEEERNNEBER -
AEBERRABEATREHEREFE—EAFENE
AEEBE TSR E S NERRRAMRMEHE
B R RERREEEANERE-

N AEEEFHEFEEARE HEEARE
BERESERREEZT IR E-BARARIANEBR
B IRERE R ERRT  ERFR BRERESH
FrRAHERFTEENTE KM TR) HIJ%PKQZKFHZF
BRERRR ARESEGERFIRIFNEATRER
Erlawl EaXFER RERAR EREE
ARRUENSKEFE-

A) EEGSEH#

EERTENREERTIRE (RITE(BEXR)RAD
BARITR %IE’ CEREEZHBAREK -EE
Eﬂ;’iﬁ?‘iﬁ'E‘J&,\aﬁx’éﬂﬁ‘%iﬁ%‘ﬁH'J,m/\BﬁE"
mEBEHR (Mg — ARTZMBERA] -

o

152

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy
assessment process (“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA’s
requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Supervisory Review
Process” in 2016. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I,
ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover
the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under
Pillar 1, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio,
minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned
capital ratios have also been established which enable the flexibility
for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation.
The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital
management and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure
where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and
then submitted to the Board for approval after endorsement of the
ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the implications of various
factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies,
return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory
requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is determined
and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the
Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure
which align with its business development needs, thereby achieving
an optimal balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

(A)  Basis of regulatory consolidation

The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the
positions of the Bank and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA
in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting
purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with HKFRSs
and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of
the Bank”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)
(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (Cont’d)

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the
accounting scope of consolidation but not included within the
regulatory scope of consolidation are as follows:

2016 2015
BEERE BB BELRE B 4RFE
Total assets Total equity  Total assets  Total equity
BT T BT T BT T BT T
L Name HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
¥R ¥R ITEEAMR A F  Nanyang Commercial Bank Trustee
Limited 16,450 16,341 16,355 16,246
EFEREEEAR2AE  Kwong Li Nam Investment Agency
Limited 4,137 4,026 4,248 4,026
R FERIT (REBA) Nanyang Commercial Bank
BRAF (Nominees) Limited 1,469 1,469 1,472 1,472

A KRR A E BRBERN [H8%— A RIT 2 KB

NIE

201612 A31H  WEIRIMNEB AR R BIEEES
HMEHFRAEHE MAREESTERGSEE (2015
FmE) o

MR2016F 128318 MEFERKB AR RKEEE
S ENNEEREAABEMERTRES HE
(20154 - £&)

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in
" Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope
of consolidation as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both
the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of
consolidation where the methods of consolidation differ as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.4

(B) Capital ratio

Capital management (Cont'd)

2016 2015
TR E — R B R CET1 capital ratio 14.31% 16.20%
—RENRL = Tier 1 capital ratio 14.31% 16.20%
FEE= PN S Total capital ratio 16.19% 18.41%

ARETENREERLERZMBROEAERNERD

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the

e : calculation of the above capital ratios is analysed as follows:
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
TRRE—RER: ZBRRFEE CET1 capital:instruments and reserves
BHEBRITHAEER L BRE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
—REXER instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
R & Retained earnings 28,648,761 25,495,966
ERBENEE Disclosed reserves 6,885,557 8,451,135
EEMR AR S BRE-—RER CET1 capital before requlatory deductions 38,678,835 37,091,618
TR E—RER BN CET1 capital:regulatory deductions
HEAE Valuation adjustments (18,800) (8,617)
EMNRECHBEAEMNEERIBEE Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities (100,652) (5,962)
W& m R A Cash flow hedge reserve 48,098 =
BRAFBEGENEERAARSH Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
ERRBRESFEENED risk on fair valued liabilities (2,983) (537)
H - REsEy (BERRIEERR) Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
EITEEERMEED revaluation of land and buildings
Z2RATEEKS (own-use and investment properties ) (6,026,176)  (6,190,605)
—RIBTTEBRREE R E Regulatory reserve for general banking risks (2,011,223) (2,255,673)
HEBEE —REANNEE R ARE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital (8,111,736)  (8,461,394)
TRRE-—RER CET1 capital 30,567,099 28,630,224
—REXR Tier 1 capital 30,567,099 28,630,224
ZHRER BRERERS Tier 2 capital:instruments and provisions
BERTAZRERE Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
SRRERE R reserve for general banking risks eligible for
—RIBITRAREE R E inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,304,611 1,109,458
ECE R Z AT A — AR & A Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,304,611 1,109,458
ZHREX BT Tier 2 capital:regulatory deductions
nE&ERFAZRERE Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
Rt RkggEy (BR R from the revaluation of land and buildings
KERE)ETEEEMM (own-use and investment properties ) eligible for
EEMRBEATEERS inclusion in Tier 2 capital 2,711,779 2,785,772
HoREARNEEHRARE Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital 2,711,779 2,785,772
ZHRENR Tier 2 capital 4,016,390 3,895,230
BER Total capital 34,583,489 32,525,454
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)
(B) Capital ratio (Cont’d)

The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:

12016F 720154

12A31H 12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

[ s % & B AN b 3 Capital conservation buffer ratio 0.625% 0.000%
) B AR B & AN b Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.34% 0.00%

B GRITHE (BEAR)HA) - 7KR2016E2019FE 5
FEERBI AT EEEEAN ([CCBLLR ) » B ZMERIR
THEXBREIN B R MMEEEZ22.5% BN o3
FAREHEER ([CCyBLLR ) Bl A ER G A E &R
FE ANEEEERAERNEERRMNEBR-F
BEREERAME SR BEANTEABEHER
201641818 &201741 818 5 Bl & = K i
BEZ0.625%K1.25%  ME (BEBBE=) 2@
BEEFRARBRINEEEZ225% °

BEREARENHTERATRARITHERwww.Ncb.

comhk TEEHWE] —HRE-

© EREE

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the phase-in
from 2016 to 2019 of the Capital Conservation Buffer (“CCB") is
designed to ensure banks build up capital outside periods of stress of
2.5% of risk-weighted assets("RWAs"). The Countercyclical Capital
Buffer (“CCyB") which is set on an individual country basis and is
built up during periods of excess credit growth to protect against
future losses. The HKMA announced a CCyB for Hong Kong of
0.625% and 1.25% of RWAs from 1 January 2016 and 1 January
2017 respectively under the phase in arrangements of Basel llI,
equivalent to 2.5% once fully phased in.

The additional information of capital disclosures is available under
section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.
com.hk.

Q) Leverage ratio
2016 2015
BETT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

—MEXR Tier 1 capital 30,567,099 28,630,224
TE AR B 3 3 f A o Leverage ratio exposure 379,536,120 339,678,093
TR & Leverage ratio 8.05% 8.43%

BRERLETRENHRER ATRARITEE www.
ncb.com.hki [EEE K TR | —HBI % -

The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank's website at
www.ncb.com.hk.
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ZHROHITE TETARBBIE RN
BRAABENTHERRET T ERHEDN
Y

HRNEEEERRRYBRENEERAE K
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The
categorisation are determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category
includes debt instruments issued by certain governments,
certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious
metals.

- Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities
and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services
vendors. It also includes precious metals and properties with
insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity
investment, derivatives and debt instruments with significant
unobservable components. It also includes properties with
significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls
framework to ensure that fair values are either determined or
validated by control units independent of the front offices. Control
units have overall responsibility for independent verification of
valuation results from front line businesses and all other significant
fair value measurements. Specific controls include verification of
observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are reported to
the Management.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations
to determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to
obtain the open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial
instruments held by the Group include bond prices, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, volatilities,
counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable
and obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following
financial instruments is as below:

Debt instruments and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining
quoted market prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing
service vendors or using discounted cash flow technique. Discounted
cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present value
using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments
and then discounts these flows using a discount rate or discount
margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market for
instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts
on foreign exchange, interest rate or commodity. The fair values
of these contracts are mainly measured using valuation techniques
such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The
inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable
inputs include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity
prices and volatilities. Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface
may be used for less commonly traded option products which are
embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative
contracts, the fair values are determined based on broker/dealer
price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA") and debit valuation
adjustments (“DVA") are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives.
These adjustments reflect market factors movement, expectations
of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and
are dependent on expected future values of exposures, default
probabilities and recovery rates.
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5. BEEMBEBNARE®) 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

51 UAREFEMNERMIA(E) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

(A)  AREER

(A)  Fair value hierarchy

2016
E—EBH E_ER E=EH At
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRMEE Financial assets
AABEEFABRZ Financial assets at fair value
R & E (M5E20) through profit or loss (Note 20)
— RHMEE — Trading assets
- BEBES — Debt securities - 3,438,763 - 3,438,763
— AERBARAAEZ — Financial assets designated at
ATABEmZERMEE fair value through profit or loss
— EBRES — Debt securities - 241,638 - 241,638
PMESBIA (FsE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 344,483 551,908 85 896,476
AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(Ki7E24) (Note 24)
— EBHBHFREFRE — Debt securities and
certificates of deposit - 62,329,215 - 62,329,215
— RO FEFH — Equity securities - - 13,381 13,381
— HAfth — Others - - 7,768,729 7,768,729
SRBE Financial liabilities
AABEZ T ABREZ Financial liabilities at fair value
A E (M15E28) through profit or loss (Note 28)
- RHHEEE — Trading liabilities - 3,223,456 - 3,223,456
PrEemIT A (KiE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 123,638 810,606 - 934,244
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51 LUAREFENESEIA () 5.1

A)  ATERER(E)

L E () 5.

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(Cont’d)

(A)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

2015
— B FEEBR FZER “act
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ST T AT T AR T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
ARERLFABRZZ Financial assets at fair value
S REE (MsE20) through profit or loss (Note 20)
— RHEMEE — Trading assets
- EBES — Debt securities - 6,714,292 - 6,714,292
— AERBNARAAREZ — Financial assets designated at
FFABRZEREE fair value through profit or loss
— BB — Debt securities - 249,280 - 249,280
TESRBT A (H5F21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 320,134 376,132 - 696,266
AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(Mt5E24) (Note 24)
— BBEHFETRE — Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 2,814,257 49,064,724 - 51,878,981
— B FES — Equity securities = = 4,613 4,613
— Hfth — Others - - 472,067 472,067
SRBHE Financial liabilities
AABEZ T ABZRZ Financial liabilities at fair value
R A E (M15E28) through profit or loss (Note 28)
- RHHEEE — Trading liabilities - 4,575,356 - 4,575,356
PrEsm T A (KiE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 103,804 199,140 - 302,944

AEBZeMEERBBERNFRYLEEE —
F_ERZENER (2015F 1 &) -
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2 4 K

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1
and level 2 for the Group during the year (2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Reconciliation of level 3 items

2016
SRMEE
Financial assets

14 AHEESREE

i = Available-for-sale
(F%) financial assets
Derivative
Financial % 45 3% 5
Instruments Equity Hth
(net) securities Others

BET T BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

201651418 At 1 January 2016 - 4,613 472,067
&= Gains
— WEmER — Income statement 85 = (26,305)
— B2 mEE — Other comprehensive income
— IHEERSF 2 ANEEL — Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities - (516) -
B ZER Impairment allowance - = =
BEA Purchases - 9,284 12,229,735
& Sales - - (4,906,768)
e Settlements - = =
72016212 4318 At 31 December 2016 85 13,381 7,768,729

R2016F12A31BHEARN SR
EERFRFARZEN
RERWN S A%

Total unrealised gains for the year included

in income statement for financial assets
held as at 31 December 2016 = - _
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5. BEENAEEMNQAARE S 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
5.1 AREFTENSMIA (&) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)
(B) F=FEREEZE (&) (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)
Financial assets
PTHE HEESHEE
ST A Available-for-sale
(%) financial assets
Derivative
Financial
Instruments Hh
(net) Others
PR T AR T
HK$'000 HK$'000
201551418 At 1 January 2015 4 =
&= Gains
— Hib 2 E s — Other comprehensive income
— AIHHEERS — Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities - -
B A Purchases = 472,067
= Sales - _
wE Settlements (4) =
7201512 HA31H At 31 December 2015 = 472,067

R2015F12A31HEFE AR SR
EERFRFARZERN
RER W25

Total unrealised gains for the year included
in income statement for financial assets
held as at 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, financial instruments
categorised as level 3 are mainly comprised of unlisted equity shares.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are
determined with reference to multiples of comparable listed
companies, such as average of the price/earning ratios of
comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are not
available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning
ratios of appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net
asset value of the underlying equity investments increased/decreased
by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive income would have
increased/decreased by HK$669,000 (2015: HK$231,000).

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as available-for-
sale, the Group obtains valuation quotations from counterparties
which may be based on unobservable inputs with significant impact
on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been classified
by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control
procedures to control the Group's exposure to such financial
instruments.

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and information about various financial
instruments. The following methods and assumptions have been
used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument
as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions
and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within
one year from the balance sheet date and their carrying value
approximates fair value.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate
terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their
carrying value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using
the same approach as those debt instruments and certificates of
deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables

The fair value of loans and receivables is determined by using the
same approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit
measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year
from the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates
fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit
measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

(Cont’d)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of
the financial instruments not measured at fair value, except for the

above with their carrying values being approximation of fair values.

2016 2015
REE BREE
Carrying ARE Carrying ARE
value Fair value value Fair value
BT T BT T BEFT BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
HEZRINMBES Held-to-maturity securities 2,063,942 2,109,576 2,466,530 2,557,828
B % e R Loans and receivables 4,759,815 4,773,057 585,792 586,376
=R Financial liabilities
DRTERELERFRE  Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 1,095,937 1,104,033 - -
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5. BEENEBHNAAE® 5.

52 FLUQAABEFENEHMIA (B 5.2

TRINTERBEAAENERMTAZARESR -

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

(Cont’d)

instruments with fair values disclosed.

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial

2016
E—EBR E-EBR EZE®R et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
SREE Financial assets
REZIHBEES Held-to-maturity securities - 2,109,576 - 2,109,576
B3R & FE YR Loans and receivables = 1,238,137 3,534,920 4,773,057
SREE Financial liabilities
BEITERESRFHRE  Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 1,104,033 - 1,104,033
2015
E—EBR BB FZEBR FEEa
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ok e PR T AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMEE Financial assets
BEEIHBES Held-to-maturity securities - 2,557,828 - 2,557,828
BN ERR Loans and receivables = 586,376 = 586,376
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices
in active market to determine the fair value of non-financial
instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group's properties can be divided into investment properties
and premises. All of the Group's investment properties and premises
were revalued as at year end. The valuations were carried out by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited,
who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and
categories of properties being valued. The Group’s Management had
discussions with the surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no
change in valuation methods during the year.

0 Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using
either the market comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties or the income capitalisation
approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the
comparable properties and the subject properties. These adjustments
are considered as insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group's properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities
in the PRC where the property markets are considered active and
transparent. Sales price, market rent and capitalisation rate of
comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
indirectly in these markets.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

Investment properties and premises (Cont’d)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3
is determined using either the market comparison approach or the
income capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount
specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared to the
comparable properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in

the fair value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as
Level 3 are as follows:

TUBRRZEQNABENER

EXATABRRER REF1 Relationship of
HE R % Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
Valuation method unobservable inputs average to fair value
H it 3% 5 A WERE AR EE -20% HEMS RAEMS-
WA B A% HE L2 wE/ (fE) (2015 : -8% ) EMS RAEBK-

Other properties Market comparison approach
or income capitalisation

approach

WMERE LB EEHE E2RE (FE) D2
ZHEULBNEETAERENZR  fINKREZ
mSEEH LB EEE BR MK EE EmE-

ﬁ‘ﬁ)%wﬂﬁ%nr

=571

E@%Z’Aﬁﬁm&éﬁ%m
MIGMERER

SHENEE THEN
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Premium/(discount) on features
of the property compared to
comparable properties

The higher the premium,
the higher the fair value.

The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.

Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined
after taken into account various factors, such as time for market
movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition, floor
level, size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with
comparable properties.

Precious metals

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining
quoted market prices in active market or market quote with certain
adjustments.
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FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Non-financial instruments measured at fair

value (Cont'd)

A) AR EER (A)  Fair value hierarchy
2016
E—EBH E_ER E=EH At
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERMEE Non-financial assets
HEWZE (Ki7E25) Investment properties (Note 25) - = 383,830 383,830
M - BB RERE Properties, plant and equipment
(Ki5E26) (Note 26)
- BE — Premises - 326,756 6,378,855 6,705,611
H & E (KtsE27) Other assets (Note 27)
- 2B — Precious metals 52,338 178,273 = 230,611
2015
E—ER F_BH FEZEBR FEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ok e AT T AR T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERMEE Non-financial assets
wEWE (MF7E25) Investment properties (Note 25) = = 414,736 414,736
M - BB RERE Properties, plant and equipment
(Ht3E26) (Note 26)
- BE — Premises - 310,266 6,462,986 6,773,252
H & E (KtsE27) Other assets (Note 27)
- B2B — Precious metals - 53,393 - 53,393

REBZEGREERFENLEE BRAME_E
W2 MR (2015F &) -

2 for the Group during the year (2015: Nil).

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level
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53 LIAREHENESBMIA (S

B) F=[ERAEEZE

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair

value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

2016
FEMEE
Non-financial assets
/=Y
k&E
Properties,
plant and
15 iy equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R2016F1 A1H At 1 January 2016 414,736 6,462,986
Wz Gains
— Wam — Income statement
— REMELAARERAEZ — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
F U investment properties 29,340 -
- BEAEEZF NS — Net gain from revaluation of premises - 5,271
— Hiv2E W= — Other comprehensive income
- BEEM® — Revaluation of premises = (66,680)
e Depreciation = (116,962)
BE Additions - 96,419
s Disposals = =
BEAFZER Transfer into level 3 = 217,000
BHE=ER Transfer out of level 3 = (251,400)
iR Reclassification (59,082) 59,082
E X E&E Exchange difference (1,164) (26,861)
72016212 4318 At 31 December 2016 383,830 6,378,855
720165128318 AR IEE F Total unrealised gains for the year included in
BEERFRNGFARGZENAETR income statement for non-financial assets held
W a5 42 58 as at 31 December 2016
— REMERNREARZF N — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 29,340 -
— BEAFEEZFHE — Net gain from revaluation of premises = 5,271
29,340 5,271
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair

value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

2015
EeRmEE
Non-financial assets
L E=-Y7)
PET
Properties,
plant and
equipment
"EME
Investment FE
properties Premises
R T IT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R2015F1 A 18 At 1 January 2015 1,280,271 6,821,340
Wz Gains
— Wk — Income statement
— REMERNABERAEZ — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
F U investment properties 35,446 =
- BEAEEZFNE — Net gain from revaluation of premises = 2,321
— Hiv2E M= — Other comprehensive income
- FEEM — Revaluation of premises = 353,940
e Depreciation = (123,176)
HE Additions 2,903 26,099
mei— Disposals (901,200) (376,178)
HEHE=BHR Transfer out of level 3 = (217,000)
ENOLE Reclassification (1,498) 1,498
fEHZERE Exchange difference (1,186) (25,858)
7201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 414,736 6,462,986
R2015F12A31BHFANIES R Total unrealised gains for the year included in
EERFRNFTARGERNARER income statement for non-financial assets held
Wz 4258 as at 31 December 2015
— REWERADEREZ F W= — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 35,446 -
— BEAFEZFHE — Net gain from revaluation of premises = 2,321
35,446 2,321
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5. BEENEBHNAAE®

53 LAREENFERIA (B

=

(B) F=FEREEZE (&)

BARBHE=-ERNMEDRZSEREEDFN
HHEALBMEENE L2 RE/ (TE)RFAL
BB HE E2HE, (FTE) TDBURR
EMERAPRR 2 AT B EEEE LER -
REFREAPT SRR 2T LR ESETER
Rl #AEEYEEA LR EEEE E2RE (4
B)EHRESFAME( EtMYABRNMERR
FETTZ AR ZERNENGR 221 3| B ERE
ARBHE=ER-

6. FHMEWA

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change
in the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject
and comparable properties during the year. Premium/(discount)
on features is determined with reference to differences in features
between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that
come from recent market transactions may be different in each year,
the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties would change from year to year accordingly.
As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable
market inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into
and out of level 3.

6. NET INTEREST INCOME
2016 2015
BETT  B¥TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

FIE WA Interest income

TR R 2 & E Ath & B 8 1) 5K I8 Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,133,134 1,956,071

EFPEX Advances to customers 5,160,921 5,343,647

BHERERRAALBER L AERZ Investment in securities and financial assets

CREE at fair value through profit or loss 1,244,987 1,429,710

Hit Others 11,073 17,056
7,550,115 8,746,484

FE X H Interest expense

B 3 & E b & B 1 15 HUA) 5RIE Due to banks and other financial institutions (401,536) (711,066)

BRPIER Deposits from customers (2,373,115)  (3,024,093)

BEITERES RFRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue (3,736) =

Hit Others (236,919) (291,175)
(3,015,306) (4,026,334)

R E WA Net interest income 4,534,809 4,720,150

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE 2 A B WA BIEHE AT
AREE KK EET A B U S 4,680,000t (2015
£ 1 ##1,150,0000T ) ©
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Included within interest income is HK$4,680,000 (2015:
HK$1,150,000) of interest with respect to income accrued on
advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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6. FEIEWA

EURAAREZLFABEZEREEHRSHE
BERNEANFBWRARFBE S (RTEHHE
2Z) 5 Rl A&7 #7,526,553,0007C (20154 : 78 #
8,730,926,0007T) & /& #3,006,737,0007T (2015
£ : 5 #4,024,530,0007T ) °

7. FERBERASHA

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

6. NET INTEREST INCOME (Cont'd)

Included within interest income and interest expense
are HK$7,526,553,000 (2015: HK$8,730,926,000) and
HK$3,006,737,000 (2015: HK$4,024,530,000), before hedging
effect, for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BREERASKA Fee and commission income
BERFEe Loan commissions 471,698 288,530
R B2 Insurance 271,640 145,102
EZEMe Bills commissions 162,975 198,530
BHEL Securities brokerage 158,426 298,548
HE D8 Funds distribution 131,180 162,948
ERARER Credit card business 87,045 109,915
R AR 75 Payment services 56,266 65,442
RER Safe deposit box 30,636 26,005
FEEREERE Trust and custody services 23,075 7,689
BEEEK Currency exchange 502 555
Eith Others 240,223 143,263
1,633,666 1,446,527
RBERAEXH Fee and commission expense
BHLL Securities brokerage (22,785) (40,636)
ERARED Credit card business (8,646) (11,336)
[ Insurance (227) (144)
B RTE Payment services (18) (22)
Eih Others (29,919) (37,439)
(61,595) (89,577)
FREERASWA Net fee and commission income 1,572,071 1,356,950
HEHRE Of which arise from
— E AR EE (L AR — financial assets or financial liabilities not
ZEMEENERMBE at fair value through profit or loss
— R ERASBA — Fee and commission income 452,128 268,307
— RBERASEZH — Fee and commission expense (3.677) (3,800)
448,451 264,507
— EREREMZFEE S — trust and other fiduciary activities
— R ERASKA — Fee and commission income 35,463 19,897
- k% ERAEEZH — Fee and commission expense (1,388) (1,208)
34,075 18,689
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8. NET TRADING GAIN

2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000

Flies (BE)RE Net gain/(loss) from
— HNER 5 RINER 5 E — foreign exchange and foreign exchange products 146,678 37,696
— FETA — interest rate instruments 17,092 17,171
— B — commodities (29,075) (666)
— Rz — equity = (42)
134,695 54,159
9. HthemEEZFWHE 9. NET GAIN ON OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
A HEE A2 F R Net gain on available-for-sale securities 91,985 256,051
BB Z F s Net gain on loans and receivables 17 839
Hh Others 100,770 79,531
192,772 336,421

174



www.nch.com.hk

%155 B % 4% 4% « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2016 ANNUAL REPORT 43§

10. HAibEEWA

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2016 2015
BT T ke e
HK$'000 HK$’000

BHZER WA Dividend income from investment in securities
— FEEMHBHEE — Unlisted investments 2,338 7,236
wEYHE ZHES BTN Gross rental income from investment properties 13,311 31,843
W EBREME IR L Less:Outgoings in respect of investment properties (1,507) (3,208)
HA Others 12,917 6,537
27,059 42,408

(BRI EYMEZI T BREFAREHIEEDEZ
HERKE S HB146,0007T (20154 : 7##212,000

JT) °

[(REYEZASCRUA I DEERNRAT S B
456,0007T (20154 : 7 #446,0007T ) °

11. BEEEFRE

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties”
is HK$146,000 (2015: HK$212,000) of direct operating expenses

related to investment properties that were not let during the year.

Contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income from

investment properties” amounted to HK$456,000 (2015:

HK$446,000).

11. NET CHARGE OF IMPAIRMENT

ALLOWANCES
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEX Advances to customers
& Bl 51 & Individually assessed
— HIREE — New allowances (585,698) (1,050,285)
— & [E — Releases 120,001 256,042
— U [e] 2 58 BR 18 — Recoveries 43,851 19,453
AR Bl 58 B OB B2 F 5 Net charge of individually assessed loan
impairment allowances (421,846) (774,790)
HETE Collectively assessed
— HIREE — New allowances (104,915) (90,957)
— & [E — Releases 54,823 231,987
— U [e] 2 58 BR 18 — Recoveries 1,490 785
RAE T EERREERF Net (charge)/reversal of collectively assessed loan
(Betl) /#E impairment allowances (48,602) 141,815
EFCREEEFEE Net charge of loan impairment allowances (470,448) (632,975)
EXRERRERREFRE Net charge of impairment allowance on
loans and receivables financial investments (15,627) -
Hith Others = (349)
HEEEFRE Net charge of impairment allowances (486,075) (633,324)
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12. REXH 12. OPERATING EXPENSES
2016 2015
BT T ke e
HK$'000 HK$'000
AFER(BEEEHE) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments )
— & E A E A — Salaries and other costs 1,256,081 1,151,425
— BRI — Pension cost 150,768 152,819
— HRRIREF — Supplementary retirement benefits 5,190 102,330
1,412,039 1,406,574
FBERFZESL (TEERE) Premises and equipment expenses
(excluding depreciation)
- BEMA® — Rental of premises 256,994 256,906
— BB — Information technology 157,545 169,431
— Efh — Others 59,717 57,699
474,256 484,036
e Depreciation 199,917 222,817
AN & Auditor’s remuneration
— BT RT — Audit services 7,084 6,195
— TR — Non-audit services 4,504 219
Hihga il Other operating expenses
— EBINBE — Outsourcing activities fee 219,621 110,765
— Efh — Others 339,156 401,556
2,656,577 2,632,162
13. REYEHE DAAEHAEZFE  13. NET GAIN FROM DISPOSAL OF/FAIR
Y = VALUE ADJUSTMENTS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$000 HK$'000
HEREWE 2 FlE Net gain from disposal of investment properties = 85,600
REMERARBEREZ FRE Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
properties 29,340 35,446
29,340 121,046
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14. NET GAIN FROM DISPOSAL/

W= REVALUATION OF PROPERTIES, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
& B E 2 F s Net gain from disposal of premises 1,758 17,468
HEZE BERERERZ Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
FEE fittings (2,893) (543)
BEFEEZFRE Net gain from revaluation of premises 5,271 2,321
4,136 19,246
15. ®1\E 15. TAXATION
Was RN Z BIBAKIAT : Taxation in the income statement represents:
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEATEIE Current tax
BEENEH Hong Kong profits tax
— FRFFARIE — Current year taxation 430,978 446,508
— EFEEEE — Over-provision in prior years (8,498) (5,168)
422,480 441,340
EINEETE Overseas taxation
— FAFTARIE — Current year taxation 198,822 59,758
— AFERR,/ (B5)BE — Under/(over) —provision in prior years 57 (5,193)
621,359 495,905
RRER IE Deferred tax
TRMEE2EERER R Origination and reversal of temporary differences
REAFIEER R and unused tax credits (24,214) (14,170)
597,145 481,735

EAFBR I IRRBAFE G5 ERBUEF KX
16.5% (20154F : 16.5% ) 128 /B oNgE T 2 TR IR
REEGBFEFRHEFRAEBLCEEBAERR
TR EGHE -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
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15. BB (&)

15. TAXATION (Cont'd)

AEERBAIRMNEENERIE  BREFENG The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation that differs from

MEGHEOREZZNT the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of
Hong Kong is as follows:
2016 2015
BT T ST
HK$'000 HK$'000
B B B i A Profit before taxation 3,344,522 3,378,512
LR E16.5% (20154 1 16.5% ) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

STEHIE (2015 :16.5% ) 551,846 557,454
HWBERGEREZENTE Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 55,331 28,680
EERBRZ WA Income not subject to taxation (29,401) (88,297)
s LR 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 27,465 48,460
RIERM B EE Tax losses not recognised 1 1
FRATFRBEROBIEESR Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (15) (9)
TEHBERE Over-provision in prior years (8,441) (10,361)
YEINEIR TR Foreign withholding tax 359 (54,193)
FTABIE Taxation charge 597,145 481,735
B = Effective tax rate 17.85% 14.26%
16. KRE 16. DIVIDENDS

2016 2015
=15 waE ST Faks)
it BT T e BT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$'000 HK$ HK$'000
H AR B Interim dividends = = 77.5 542,500

20165 W7 £ 5 JR X B (20154 : # #542,500,000 No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December

JT) °
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17. RBRRER A
(@) HREHRMREE

REBGETFTAEBEINRERFKSEERE (&
BEIEH) & 2 B3 RIKAT 8 R RIRME S04
BEFE - BRI RN B B A B 2RI
BB AERAEEAH & 25% MEXZEAH
RAEEBERNAHF 25%E15%TE (BT EE ZR
BER) EEBRENER  RATERSERBLL
BRSEEMI0F KA EEE R TWEN100% 2 EE
HRRIEMIFRIFNE T HEMERMRLE
FAH (4 B s R (B FR A1) - PTIRER30% E90% 2 & &
HF-EERERMNEEHER B GREEQAEST
ZERF) FTAR ©

BEE GRESEA) R2000F12A1H B NEE
N2EPRRBEZRIESFE ZEABZZTEAR
FIREREBERBEETERARF] KEEEARTIR
BREERHEEEEGRAA -

H E2016F12A31H ' Tk 4B %502,0007T
(2015% : #4978 %887,0007T) Z 8 WH 1% - B ¥R
REHEI 2 R REB 4 A #543,695,0007T (20154 ¢
#) % #39,917,000L)  MAKEMRESTE 2
fH F 4 58 Bl 49 & 78 #59,313,0007T (20154 : £ 78 #
8,184,0007T ) °

(b) HREFZEETE

AEBRET - HIFEESNRENZENGE
THEERAKE T -EZAE T BIEGZRKE
NBERE2BE FEZMMEMEKER -

ANEHEIE S R MRKE T 2 A m Bk

454 E iy

)
2

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO
schemes exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-
Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes,
employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes equal
to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly
contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic
salaries, depending on years of service. The employees are entitled
to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10
years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled
to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from 30%
to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other
than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by
employee are subject to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1
December 2000, the Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential
Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is BOCI-Prudential
Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group's total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for
the year ended 31 December 2016 amounting to approximately
HK$43,695,000 (2015: approximately HK$39,917,000), after a
deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$502,000
(2015: approximately HK$887,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$9,313,000 (2015: approximately
HK$8,184,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its
retired employees. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to
retirement benefits which included fully redeemed medical care,
housing allowance and other retirement benefits.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in
the life expectancy for pensioners.
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17. BARBRKA (&)
b) FEFEE(H)

REMDZBAAFRE &N —MBEAER2016
F12ANBAERRF BN EMEREGETEAE -

EAREHRRMER T BRERRAT :

17.
(b)

Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the
defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31 December 2016

by using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation

method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

2016 2015

P = Discount rate (%) 2.2 2.0
T8 HA B8 AR B A S 1 R (%) Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6.0 6.0
T8 HA B 5H S Bh AT B 12 R (%) Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0
TEHRR A S mASIE KT (%) Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0
TEHRFE & 3 R K (%) Expected rate of rental increases (%) 3.0 3.0
T8 HA Bl 5 R (%) Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 3.0-18.0 3.0-18.0
TEHASE - & Expected death rate EBADEMEX BEADEME
Hong Kong Hong Kong

EAREARYEZRERRZBBMESITAT

Life Tables 2012

Life Tables 2012

A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the

end of the reporting period is shown below:

2016

FEF =18 F AERN=ZEF

AEZHM AEZ M

OR2) OR2)

Increase,” Increase,”

(decrease) (decrease)

Lt 2= 38 A0 in defined Lt g in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate  obligations in rate  obligations

BET T BET T

% HK$°000 % HKS$’000

P = Discount rate 0.1 (1,850) 0.1 2,450
TEHIEERBRASIEEE  Expected rate of medical

insurance cost 0.5 10,990 0.5 (9,050)
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17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

2015

FTE A 2 48 A S N 2= 48 A

AWz M, A2 M

ORtA) ORt4>)

Increase,” Increase,”

(decrease) (decrease)

Lt F 32 A0 in defined Lt Rk A in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate obligations in rate obligations

BT T BT

% HK$'000 % HK$'000

v & Discount rate 0.1 (2,010) 0.1 2,070
TEHIEERBASIERE  Expected rate of medical

insurance cost 0.5 10,540 0.5 (9,140)

ERBEESTRRBHREIERR A TRDHE

BHRFEFFERAEFE-

EiRe lam RN ER ARG S

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a

method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the

end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement

BRI in respect of the plan is as follows:
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEF AT 3 Defined benefit schemes
— BHRBE A A — Current service cost 2,510 =
— BERBEKA — Past service cost
— FTEl5[E — plan introduction = 102,330
— FTEIRE# — plan amendment 660 =
— FHEER — Net interest cost 2,020 =
s Total expenses 5,190 102,330
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17. BARBRKA (&)
b) FEFEE(H)
A R ERER AR

AHEIMERIAT

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of the plan is as follows:

2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REF =5t & Defined benefit schemes
— BREBEBHELENFE K= — Actuarial gains arising from changes in
assumptions (4,700) -
— RRAREFNRBREER — Actuarial losses arising from experience
adjustments 6,400 -
REEWZTERNDFAEBAKAES  Components of defined benefit costs recognised in
comprehensive income 1,700 -
AErEIMBELEOT The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BANEE Benefit liability
M1 A1H At 1 January 102,330 -
& AR TS A A Current service cost 2,510 =
i@ K AR 7% A AR Past service cost
— 5HEI5|# — plan introduction - 102,330
— FrElek# — plan amendment 660 -
FHEEA Net interest cost 2,020 =
B EREER Actuarial losses on remeasurement 1,700 =
L= RN Benefit paid (2,660) =
®12A31H At 31 December 106,560 102,330
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17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)
Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future years are as

follows:

2016 2015
BETRT  ABTET
HK$'000 HK$'000

RER121E B AR Within the next 12 months 2,920 2,550
2EF F54F Between 2 and 5 years 12,140 10,620
6F F105F Between 6 and 10 years 16,960 15,230
105 A Over 10 years 231,140 216,660
TEE AR Total expected payments 263,160 245,060

REMBRBAABEERS R Z FHARR20F -

18. EEX - ESEEEBABRFTEAER
B &

(@) ESHs

REEAKERARTEZTR/ARTREEMNBA
AR ZREME N REEURARK 2 MEFENT

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of
the reporting period is 20 years.

18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
AND KEY PERSONNEL'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors
of the Bank in respect of their services rendered for the Bank and
managing the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as
follows:

2016 2015

BETRT  ABTET
HK$'000 HK$'000

wne Fees 1,269 1,184
H b & Other emoluments 12,272 9,119
13,541 10,303
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18. EX SEEEABRITEAE

(b)

GS5STEREBAERETEABSHHMH

18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
AND KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
Personnel under CG-5

BB REL 2CG-5 (BREMFMHIZIES) - AF Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued
ERAEEZSHREBEABREZEABNTMFB by the HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management

T

()  REARTHIFH

and Key Personnel of the Group during the year are as follows:

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2016
EREBEAS TEAB
Senior Management Key Personnel
E 31513 E 3§13
Non- i1 o Non- i3 @zt
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total

BRI BET T BETR BRI BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ElE £ B Fixed remuneration
RBe Cash 20,972 - 20,972 9,406 - 9,406
7B % B Variable remuneration
Re Cash 6,046 928 6,974 3,487 - 3,487
27,018 928 27,946 12,893 - 12,893
2015
SREBEAB FEAB
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEETE 13413
Non- T @it Non- BT Fobe
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BETT BT T BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bl £ B Fixed remuneration
Re Cash 10,688 - 10,688 6,107 - 6,107
FE) B Variable remuneration
RBé Cash 4,391 838 5,229 2,171 - 2,171
15,079 838 15,917 8,278 - 8,278

A EEH BB IE138 (20155 42 ) BB EEAE KT The remuneration above includes 13 (2015: 4) members of Senior
% (2015 : 5% ) EE A8 -
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Management and 7 (2015: 5) members of Key Personnel.
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DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

£ (&) AND KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)
(b) CGSTEREEBAERTEASHIHH (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
(%) Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)
(ii) AT (ii)  Deferred remuneration
2016 2015
BEREEAR =RERAER
Senior FTEAE Senior TEAEB
Management Key Personnel Management  Key Personnel
BETT BET T BB T BB T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT % B Deferred remuneration
BE5E Vested 637 - 521 -
BB Unvested 1,668 - 1,377 -
2,305 - 1,898 -
R1A1H At 1 January 1,377 - 1,060 =
BERT Awarded 928 - 838 -
BER Paid out (637) - (521) -
ABRESGTE MRS Reduced through performance
adjustments - - - -
M12A318 At 31 December 1,668 - 1,377 -

HEBEAZ AESIRENSREEBEAEREEAS For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key
DIREEER (BEOFMHIERS) & - Personnel mentioned in this section are defined according to the
HKMA's Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System.

- “ﬁE@A ERREEEEMNRRERE -
CBEBBREIERER BEEEE
$ @ﬁ g wEeL8 wEes/ A
BEAN BEREE BSEAE BEREE.
RIT4REs - ER2WE BIxPEE RHEAME
TERAAE -

E

Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed
by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-
wide strategy or material business lines, including Managing
Director, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Executive
Committee Members, Heads of Executive Committee
Working Group, Chief Strategy Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Technology Officer, Board
Secretary, Head of Audit Department and other particular
personnel.
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18. EE SEBEEAEBRITEAE 18.

M€ (&)

(b) CGSTEREBABERTEAENHMH (b)

(%)

(i) B (E)

- TEAR EAEBKERS R ERERALE

(ii)

HERRBEEAYE JEARERHARE
BRER BEAPE HANBERTZEN
AR BEEBARFFBRBANELTE &

TRIEREREELEE-

19. EFREREHETREMSH 19.

DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
AND KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)

Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

Deferred remuneration (Cont’d)

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business
activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual
responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the
profit, including heads of material business lines, Head of
Treasury, as well as Head of Risk Management Department.

CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND

BB ER OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2016 2015

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

EFRE Cash 561,587 594,148

TR REBITH 4 & Balances with central banks 18,761,393 16,038,647

FRERTT R E At & B S A 45 &8 Balances with banks and other financial institutions 3,392,991 6,232,044
ERTMEMSREE—EAA Placements with banks and other financial institutions

B8 2 E HATF maturing within one month 29,611,612 31,379,966

52,327,583 54,244,805
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200 ARAESITAERZZERMEE 20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

RERUAAERL
TABEZEREE
Financial assets
REUEE designated at fair value st
Trading assets through profit or loss Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
BT T BETT BET T BETT BRI T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAE R At fair value
% Treasury bills 3,438,763 6,714,292 - = 3,438,763 6,714,292
Hit5%E % Other debt securities - - 241,638 249,280 241,638 249,280
3,438,763 6,714,292 241,638 249,280 3,680,401 6,963,572
BH@ER T HENT Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:
RERUARAERL
FFABZEZERMEE
Financial assets
REMEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss
2016 2015 2016 2015
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
(ER e Debt securities
— RBEE L™ — Listed in Hong Kong = = 241,638 249,280
— JFLE™™ - Unlisted 3,438,763 6,714,292 - -
BHBEE Total securities 3,438,763 6,714,292 241,638 249,280
BLRRRRBETEEZ D RNT Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
RERUAAEZE
FFABZEZERMEE
Financial assets
REMEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss
2016 2015 2016 2015
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BLHEE Sovereigns 3,438,763 6,714,292 = =
NEIE Corporate entities - = 241,638 249,280
& R Total securities 3,438,763 6,714,292 241,638 249,280
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21. fTESRIAERYPEE

SERIZ TAER MK M RO ERERA 0T
EEMTRAAOIFEEREARERE 2

RARKE—BRERBEINEHAGE -

B NEXEECBFHREIBRTRARERAH S
A - EHNERERBIREE  ME (WEE
MEEFZBHMNE)XESE (NARFH)HIA LD
FiEMae (MXXEER L) -BRELEE RS

BRI RERGERIMAE -

SNE - FIE BEBREOESHEEENENED
(LB RED (HEN) RHERRE-HFERH
HARK—ER AL TERNEREE (REHRE) X
B (RO —EHENSR TANERN (3
AR ) B — & 1 o B BRI SME M A KA K - B
ETRBEORR-—ENHEE AREHEAOE
B F T ESIMPREKRIEBR ZET (R
SITETEE Z M) -
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate,
commodity and equity related derivative financial instrument
contracts for trading and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell
foreign currency on a future date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments
to exchange one set of cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps
result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for example, fixed
rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, silver swaps)
or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest
rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange
of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate, precious metal and equity options
are contractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants
the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during
a set period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a
predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of foreign
exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives a premium from
the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between the
Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange
(for example, exchange-traded stock option).
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables.
The contract/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the
volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates
and certain of them provide a basis for comparison with fair value
instruments recognised on the balance sheet. However, they do not
necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative
financial instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
market interest rates, metal prices or equity prices relative to their
terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer
business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in
trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the
banking book. A derivative instrument must be included in the
approved product list before any transactions for that instrument can
be made. There are limits to control the notional amount of exposure
arising from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of
the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the
relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting
and control.
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21. FTEESRMIARYPET (&)

(@ TEEMIA(E)

TERBASETESBMIARIRANNBZAEN &

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of

e 3 UE T each class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
2016
TREEHA
HHETHE
Not qualified
BEE [ B ¥ for hedge et
Trading Hedging accounting Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
PEXRE %) Exchange rate contracts
BN ER M= HA Spot and forwards 14,183,037 = - 14,183,037
= B Swaps 33,099,594 6,983,272 - 40,082,866
HNEE 32 5 HA Foreign currency options
— B AHi# — Options purchased 13,885 - - 13,885
— B AR — Options written 13,885 = = 13,885
47,310,401 6,983,272 - 54,293,673
FEEH Interest rate contracts
1= 51 Swaps 37,943,200 - 231,866 38,175,066
[SEERSED Commodity contracts 3,464,165 = = 3,464,165
88,717,766 6,983,272 231,866 95,932,904
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21. fTEEMIAREPET () 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(@ fFTESEIA(E) (a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)
2015
TRFE A
e shA
Not qualified
BEE for hedge st
Trading accounting Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fERA 4 Exchange rate contracts
Bl ER M= HR Spot and forwards 8,420,500 = 8,420,500
1= 51 Swaps 37,601,988 - 37,601,988
HNE 32 5 EA Foreign currency options
— B AH#E — Options purchased 9,135 = 9,135
— B AR — Options written 9,135 = 9,135
46,040,758 - 46,040,758
FMEEH Interest rate contracts
1= 51 Swaps 33,758,773 231,725 33,990,498
[SEERSED Commodity contracts 26,438 = 26,438
79,825,969 231,725 80,057,694
PHEERBEREEE: REBE GR1THE (HE)R Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts which do
A 2R BRI EBITSRAERSIHEER not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes but are managed in
BEEFUAATFEECHERARNSHRITA 6 conjunction with the financial instruments designated at fair value

ERNITETESL-

through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance with the
requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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21. FTEESRMIARYPET (&)

(@ TEEMIA(E)

TRERSESTESRITEM2A3IBZARE:

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a)

Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of
derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

2016
AREEE AREEE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
TRERA TREHA
Faii)- 197 k= 73
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE RERYHF for hedge @it EE REBRHM for hedge @zt
Trading  Hedging accounting Total Trading  Hedging accounting Total
BT BTt BETr B¥Tx EMTT B¥Tr B¥Tr B%Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
EXEH Exchange rate contracts
HEARHE Spot and forwards 595,124 - - 595,124  (350,145) - - (350,145)
R Swaps 184,153 95,101 - 279254  (126,540)  (202,040) - (328,580)
IMNER 5 i Foreign currency options
- BAHE - Options purchased 499 - - 499 - - = =
- BLHE - Options written - - - - (499) - - (499)
779,776 95,101 - 874,877 (477,184)  (202,040) - (679,224)
FIREH Interest rate contracts
e 4 Swaps 9,210 - - 9,210 (9,208) - (8431)  (17,639)
Hma & Commodity contracts 12,389 - - 12,389 (237,381) = - (237,381)
801,375 95,101 - 896,476 (723,773)  (202,040) (8,431)  (934,244)
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21. PTHEEMIAREPEE (&) 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(@ fFTESEIA(E) (a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)
2015
RABEEE AN I=N=K
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
TRERA TREEHRA
HhEgiE HhgiE
Not Not
qualified qualified
HE  for hedge Bt HE  for hedge Bt
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BT BT BET T BB T BETT BB T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXEK Exchange rate contracts
B HA & i AR Spot and forwards 373,801 - 373,801 (207,309) - (207,309)
=5 Swaps 311,226 - 311,226 (65,690) - (65,690)
HNE R 5 B Foreign currency options
— B A — Options purchased 15 - 15 - = =
— B R — Options written = = = (15) = (15)
685,042 - 685042 (273,014) - (273,019)
FE&H Interest rate contracts
= 5 Swaps 11,135 = 11,135 (12,296) (17,516) (29,812)
Ema A Commodity contracts 89 = 89 (118) = (118)
696,266 - 696,266 (285,428) (17,516) (302,944)
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(@ TEEMIA(E)

TRIMITESRT A Z EERBRIEREE W21
FREARRLEZ&ERMERNERETMRE

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the
derivative financial instruments and is prepared with reference to the
completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy

ratio.
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
XS4 Exchange rate contracts
= H Forwards 236,167 60,422
15 HA Swaps 213,873 190,122
HNERX 5 HARE Foreign currency options
— B M — Options purchased 124 23
450,164 250,567
FEEL Interest rate contracts
5 5 Swaps 37 10,111
450,201 260,678

EERBRMESERRE GRITE (EX)RAD 7
HoWBBEHRARRZHF2BERREREHNZHR
Rt o

AEBBEEIEEFTELERABEREOITER S
NI B R 57 #450,268,0007T (20154 « 75 #
190,872,0007T) * AR &R FHELE B NAR BB
#126,038,0007T (20154 : /5% 19,879,0007T ) °

194

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the
status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each
type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
agreements for the Group amounted to HK$450,268,000 (2015:
HK$190,872,000) and the effect of valid bilateral netting agreements
amounted to HK$126,038,000 (2015: HK$19,879,000).
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b) Hedge accounting

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated as
hedging instruments as at 31 December are as follows:

2016 2015
BE =R+ BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BETT BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IR & i EF Cash flow hedges 95,101 (202,040) = =
B2 mEH Cash flow hedges

AR BN 32 B M 3R B 5 5 O RO R
REFNASRENDETERRE - REHEE S
BEHfEe

FERBEERL D 2 WHHBEERKRERAER
(20154 - 4&)

22. EXRKREMERE

The group used cross-currency interest rate swap to minimise the
cash flow fluctuation of interbank borrowing triggered by foreign
exchange risks and interest rate risk.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the
income statement during the year (2015: Nil).

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2016 2015

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BAER Personal loans and advances 38,210,006 34,515,588
AEIER Corporate loans and advances 149,570,956 121,721,186
BEFEX Advances to customers 187,780,962 156,236,774

BERORE %R (M15E23) Loan impairment allowances (Note 23)

— AR FE — Individually assessed (474,147) (433,567)
— RBATE — Collectively assessed (852,377) (951,336)
186,454,438 154,851,871

B5EE Trade bills 5,665,154 14,072,143
192,119,592 168,924,014
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22. EXRREMERIE (&)

MR2016F12A31H BEFERBEEL | BB
601,123,0007T (20154 : % #£396,489,0007T ) °

R2016F 128318 R EHE FEBIELERIBRELE

&5 (20154 : &) o

23. ERREESE

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

(Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2016, advances to customers included accrued
interest of HK$601,123,000 (2015: HK$396,489,000).

As at 31 December 2016, no impairment allowance was made in

respect of trade bills (2015: Nil).

23. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES

2016
& 18 Bl 5 1
Individually assessed
& A AT st
Personal Corporate Total
BET T BET T BET T
HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2016FE1 18 At 1 January 2016 18,167 415,400 433,567
RURE R B E, (EH#) Charged/(credited) to income statement (4,248) 426,094 421,846
F SR 2 R U B B 3R Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (1,461) (384,313) (385,774)
W [El E i 35 BR 18 Recoveries 3,464 40,387 43,851
T ER R (B 7 5 O % Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (4,680) (4,680)
N ETE Exchange difference (1,217) (33,446) (34,663)
720165124318 At 31 December 2016 14,705 459,442 474,147
2016
R E T
Collectively assessed
& A AT st
Personal Corporate Total
BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K2016FE1 18 At 1 January 2016 63,965 887,371 951,336
RUREE R B (EB) Charged/(credited) to income statement 103,425 (54,823) 48,602
F MEE 2 R U B B 3R Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (116,169) - (116,169)
I 1=l 2 9 S BR 1B Recoveries 1,490 = 1,490
M E%E Exchange difference (2,796) (30,086) (32,882)
2016512 A31H At 31 December 2016 49,915 802,462 852,377
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23. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES (Cont'd)

2015
2B Bl 54k
Individually assessed
(YN NG| #E
Personal Corporate Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2015F1/81H At 1 January 2015 17,298 714,300 731,598
RS R B E Charged to income statement 16,063 758,727 774,790
F M 2 R E B Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (14,983) (1,015,305) (1,030,288)
W [B] 2 il 35 Bk 18 Recoveries 1,762 17,691 19,453
T IR R (B 2 4 [E Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (1,150) (1,150)
EHZER Exchange difference (1,973) (58,863) (60,836)
7201512 H831H At 31 December 2015 18,167 415,400 433,567
2015
REE
Collectively assessed
& A NE]| #E
Personal Corporate Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2015%1 818 At 1 January 2015 98,864 1,139,658 1,238,522
RS R B E Charged to income statement 90,172 (231,987) (141,815)
F M 2 R E B Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (117,742) - (117,742)
L [5] 2 461 5 AR 18 Recoveries 785 = 785
ME X Z 50 Exchange difference (8,114) (20,300) (28,414)
2015412 A318 At 31 December 2015 63,965 887,371 951,336
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24, SRR E 24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
2016
RAREER R R AT R
At fair value At amortised cost
&
ERMEE BEZE
Available- ZFHi B &%
for-sale Held-to- EFR K EWK
financial maturity Loans and At
assets securities receivables Total
T 5T T 5T BT T T T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
&% Treasury bills 27,295,389 1,856,312 - 29,151,701
HiEBES Other debt securities 20,126,675 207,630 1,240,319 21,574,624
47,422,064 2,063,942 1,240,319 50,726,325
FR & Certificates of deposit 14,907,151 = - 14,907,151
BERES M RERE Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 62,329,215 2,063,942 1,240,319 65,633,476
I 17 78 75 Equity securities 13,381 - - 13,381
Hfb Others 7,768,729 - 3,519,496 11,288,225
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815 76,935,082
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2015
12 55 P AN D1 R

At fair value At amortised cost
At &
TRMEE BEE
Available-  Z|Hi B %>
for-sale Held-to- &% e Uk
financial maturity Loans and #E
assets securities receivables Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E% Treasury bills 18,118,392 2,257,798 - 20,376,190
HMEBEH Other debt securities 22,716,901 208,732 585,792 23,511,425
40,835,293 2,466,530 585,792 43,887,615
TR Certificates of deposit 11,043,688 = - 11,043,688
BIEEH R T AERTE Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 51,878,981 2,466,530 585,792 54,931,303
AR 1D 78 2 Equity securities 4,613 = = 4,613
HAh Others 472,067 = = 472,067
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792 55,407,983
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24, €@IRE (#)
SEIBER Y BT

24.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial investments is analysed by place of listing as follows:

2016
A S
cREE BBz
Available- ZIHiRRZH
for-sale Held-to- ER K EWEK
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities  receivables
BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEESFRERE Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
— RBEE L™ — Listed in Hong Kong 5,538,663 - -
— REBUINET — Listed outside Hong Kong 7,456,152 97,678 =
12,994,815 97,678 -
— kLM — Unlisted 49,334,400 1,966,264 1,240,319
62,329,215 2,063,942 1,240,319
& 7 3% % Equity securities
—3EEm — Unlisted 13,381 = =
H b Others
— JEET — Unlisted 7,768,729 - 3,519,496
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815
BEZEHBEZ Market value of listed
EWESME held-to-maturity securities 99,043
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24, ERRE 1) 24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)
2015
A i &
TREE BEE
Available-  E|EFREH
for-sale Held-to- & 7% & & 3R
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities receivables
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEBHRTRE Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
—REBE L™ — Listed in Hong Kong 3,219,469 = =
— RBEBUINETH — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,265,404 42,543 =
9,484,873 42,543 -
—¥FEm — Unlisted 42,394,108 2,423,987 585,792
51,878,981 2,466,530 585,792
%10 78 5 Equity securities
—¥FEm — Unlisted 4,613 = =
HApb Others
— 3EEm — Unlisted 472,067 = =
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
BEZEHBEZ Market value of listed
EHESEmE held-to-maturity securities 43,286
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24, EREBRE (%)
SRMBBRBITREZ HENT

24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial investments is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2016
At &
THEE BEZE
Available- Z/H A &%
for-sale Held-to- ER K EWEK
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities  receivables
BT T BT T BT T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
BELESR Sovereigns 15,847,705 1,375,850 =
NEER Public sector entities* 2,486,182 109,953 -
RIT R HE A & @R Banks and other financial institutions 43,820,989 480,461 4,759,815
YNGR Corporate entities 7,956,449 97,678 =
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815
2015
AT
CRIEE HAEE
Available-  E|HiH#
for-sale Held-to- B 3% B UK
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities receivables
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BELHERE Sovereigns 17,267,770 1,690,727 =
YNV Public sector entities* 1,397,813 111,195 =
RITRE M Bk E Banks and other financial institutions 27,633,868 567,071 355,393
ANAElE Corporate entities 6,056,210 97,537 230,399
52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
& BREEGRITE(EN) R RS BEARATAEE * Included available-for-sale financial assets of HK$2,486,182,000 (2015:

UMAHEESREES ”%2,486,182,00071 (2015
4 #5#1,397,813,0007T) R A E
109,953,0007T (20154 : 7% 111,195,0007T) °
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HK$1,397,813,000) and held-to-maturity securities of HK$109,953,000
(2015: HK$111,195,000) which are eligible to be classified as public sector
entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

SRTRE 2 EBHAnT The movements in financial investments are summarised as follows:
2016
A S
cREE BEZE
Available- Z/H A &%
for-sale Held-to- ER K EWEK
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities  receivables
BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K2016F1 18 At 1 January 2016 52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
&N Additions 101,143,245 - 4,760,501
RE EBEK&EH Disposals, redemptions and maturity (82,239,818) (278,026) (581,015)
i Amortisation (21,407) 3,088 9,611
AREZE Change in fair value (474,313) - =
MEHZRR Exchange difference (652,043) (127,650) 553
F AR ELEE Impairment during the year - - (15,627)
2016512 H31H At 31 December 2016 70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815
2015
At &
CREE BEE
Available-  Z|Ei B EFH
for-sale Held-to- & 7% & JiE W 3%
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities receivables
BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2015F1 818 At 1 January 2015 42,475,340 2,618,390 2,074,594
1 ) Additions 64,175,644 - 1,800,033
A= E P& Disposals, redemptions and maturity (52,574,718) - (3,193,198)
e 5H Amortisation (80,925) 6,900 (46,354)
NAEE Change in fair value 280,066 = =
5 =% Exchange difference (1,919,746) (158,760) (49,283)
7201512 A31H At 31 December 2015 52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
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24, @B E (&) 24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)
ERMEWRFZBEEESS BN T The movements in impairment allowances on loans and receivables

are summarised as follows:

2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
m1A1H At 1 January = =
FRRELEH Impairment during the year 15,627 -
ME X ZEX Exchange difference (203) =
Mm12A31H At 31 December 15,424 -
25. REYXE 25. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
W1A1H At 1 January 414,736 1,280,271
BE Additions - 2,903
& Disposals - (901,200)
A EW Fair value gains 29,340 35,446
BN EEEYE BMK Reclassification to properties, plant and
&1 (Mf7E26) equipment (Note 26) (59,082) (1,498)
fEHZERE Exchange difference (1,164) (1,186)
M12A31H At 31 December 383,830 414,736
KEYHEZ EEERBLOFRERIARSTLT - The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the
remaining terms of the leases as follows:
2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBERE Held in Hong Kong
RHIFA 4 (EBiB50F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 244,290 248,590
AR EBFR 49(108F Z=509F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 139,540 145,820
EBBAINER Held outside Hong Kong
REAFR (105 =504F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) - 20,326
383,830 414,736
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25. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2016, investment properties were included in
the balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2016
on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the
price that would be received to sell each investment property in an
orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement

26. ME- -BMHERE

date.

26. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B BEE
RiEREE
Equipment,
EE fixtures and #et
Premises fittings Total
BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2016F1B1H 2 REFE Net book value at 1 January 2016 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
®E Additions 131,175 80,646 211,821
& Disposals (50,810) (4,643) (55,453)
=i Revaluation (59,114) - (59,114)
FENE Depreciation for the year (119,939) (79,978) (199,917)
BN EEERENE Reclassification from
(FfF7E25) investment properties (Note 25) 59,082 - 59,082
E X E=&E Exchange difference (28,035) (6,997) (35,032)
72016512 A318 2 BREFE Net book value
at 31 December 2016 6,705,611 223,796 6,929,407
2016512 A31H At 31 December 2016
RAME S G E Cost or valuation 6,705,611 836,637 7,542,248
REE Accumulated depreciation = (612,841) (612,841)
R20165F12 A31H 2R\ FE Net book value at 31 December 2016 6,705,611 223,796 6,929,407
EiEEZ R AE K The analysis of cost or valuation
HEITHT : of the above assets is as follows:
H20165F12A31H At 31 December 2016
R A E At cost - 836,637 836,637
Zi4E At valuation 6,705,611 = 6,705,611
6,705,611 836,637 7,542,248
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26. VI B|HRRBME (2) 26. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)
B B
R R HE
Equipment,
FBE fixtures and BEt
Premises fittings Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2015F1 18 2 EEEE Net book value at 1 January 2015 7,035,310 293,187 7,328,497
HE Additions 27,237 47,003 74,240
=} Disposals (381,098) (650) (381,748)
Eih Revaluation 377,219 = 377,219
FEWE Depreciation for the year (127,328) (95,489) (222,817)
EMOBEERREME Reclassification from
(FfF7E25) investment properties (Note 25) 1,498 - 1,498
E X Z=& Exchange difference (26,857) (9,283) (36,140)
NHEAFHEEE Classified as assets held for sale (132,729) = (132,729)
M2015%12 8318 2 BRE FE Net book value at
31 December 2015 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
7201512 A318 At 31 December 2015
RAE S G E Cost or valuation 6,773,252 820,038 7,593,290
Z2EE Accumulated depreciation = (585,270) (585,270)
72015412 A318 2 BEE R E Net book value
at 31 December 2015 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
B EZBRARER The analysis of cost or valuation
HEITHT : of the above assets is as follows:
72015512 A31H At 31 December 2015
R AR E At cost = 820,038 820,038
ZhE At valuation 6,773,252 = 6,773,252
6,773,252 820,038 7,593,290
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26. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining
terms of the leases as follows:

2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEBFE Held in Hong Kong

REAME %) (B A504 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 3,951,487 4,602,693
FREAFR A (10 E=504F ) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 2,155,234 1,666,127

ERBUAINFE Held outside Hong Kong
AR 49 (105 =504 ) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 576,025 485,875
HEEA (LR104) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 22,865 18,557

6,705,611 6,773,252

M20165F12A318 IR EEBBERAZEE ' Ik
BT R OR 2 A0 A BT RN 1T B IR A AR 20164F
RANBUARBEAEEMETZEEGE  ARE
EEFEEEEEERFRRNB L THMHESH
HEHES—BRERREHNER-

RELLZEHEER FEAEEICNEESMHR
BRI AER R T

As at 31 December 2016, premises were included in the balance
sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2016 on the basis of
their fair value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight
Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market
participants at the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of
the premises were recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and
the income statement as follows:

2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEnEEENFE2EMN CRE) (& (Decrease)increase in valuation credited to premises
revaluation reserve (64,385) 374,898
BERlmk zEMIEE Increase in valuation credited to income statement 5,271 2,321
(59,114) 377,219

R2016F 128318 ' BEREZRKAEINRRITE
R AEEZEEERRAZEERDFEE LSS
#728,077,0007C (20154 : 5 #607,766,0007T ) °

As at 31 December 2016, the net book value of premises that
would have been included in the Group's balance sheet had the
premises been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation was
HK$728,077,000 (2015: HK$607,766,000).
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27. HEE 27. OTHER ASSETS
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
I El&E Repossessed assets 84,952 98,469
ol Precious metals 230,611 53,393
FEWBRIE RTER & A Accounts receivable and prepayments 564,424 4,143,369

879,987 4,295,231

28. AAEEITAEZZEREE 28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
RBMERE Trading liabilities
- NEESEBRRESFEHE — Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes 3,223,456 4,575,356

2016512 A31HRBRERA A ABEE LT AE At 31 December 2016, there was no financial liabilities designated at

HwZErBE (2015F128318 &) o fair value through profit or loss (2015: Nil).
29. EFGERRYEAPE 29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING
(@) EFEX (a) Deposits from customers
2016 2015
BT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BVERTE 3R 2 A 2R A7 3R Demand deposits and current accounts
— A — Corporate 38,043,836 26,763,884
— @EAA — Personal 2,984,973 2,767,262
41,028,809 29,531,146
WEFEK Savings deposits
— A7 — Corporate 21,191,418 19,930,314
— EAA — Personal 40,575,220 39,071,432
61,766,638 59,001,746
TEH - 58 HA B AE R Time, call and notice deposits
/NG| — Corporate 103,954,603 81,285,911
— EA — Personal 50,777,480 48,443,180

154,732,083 129,729,091
257,527,530 218,261,983
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29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b) Hedge accounting
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

As at 31 December 2016, there was no RMB-denominated deposits
from customers designated as a hedging instrument to hedge
against the net investments in foreign operations (2015: Nil).

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the
income statement during the year (2015: Nil).

30. DEBT SECURITIES AND CERTIFICATES OF
DEPOSIT IN ISSUE

2016 2015
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BB 5 MFRGE R AT R Debt securities and certificates of deposit,

at amortised cost

— TFRE — Certificates of deposit 541,378 =
— HEBES — Other debt securities 554,559 =
1,095,937 -

31. HAMBRIEBER%EE

31. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS

2016 2015

BETT BT T

HKS$°000 HK$'000

Hh fE T AR I Other accounts payable 15,836,284 12,901,186
A Provisions 72,424 73,614
15,908,708 12,974,800

32. EEBIIE

BERERBERREE LG ERNF 12 [AAEHR] G
B REERBIRBERBEEMBREARAEE
MEZEREZRRARERVRE R FERE-

32. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements and unused tax credits
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes".
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32. EEBIE (&)

EERBRAZELCHR (BE) ABEXTEHEE

32.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

INEEEFERNZEBHNT : in the balance sheet, and the movements during the year are as
follows:
2016
mEFE
SHE
Accelerated MESR AEER
tax Property &  Impairment Hitr @it
depreciation  revaluation Losses  allowances Others Total
BETT BET T BT BET T BETT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
72016 1H1H At 1 January 2016 18,156 1,054,384 (33,609) (136,641) (95,900) 806,390
i/ (Bi) &K  Charged/(credited) to income
statement 8,036 5,592 31,511 22,458 (91,811) (24,214)
EREM ARk Credited to other
comprehensive income - (21,645) - - (125,625) (147,270)
EXER Exchange difference - (3,752) 2,098 3,128 (1,357) 17
72016512 A31H At 31 December 2016 26,192 1,034,579 - (111,055) (314,693) 635,023
2015
MR E
EHE
Accelerated MEE REEE
tax Property B8 Impairment Hith BEr
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances Others Total
BETT BB BETT BB BB BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
72015 1H1H At 1 January 2015 30,906 1,090,064 = (258,170) (28,498) 834,302
(832) /f2 WK (Credited)/charged to income
statement (12,750) (11) (34,976) 116,781 (83,214) (14,170)
(BR) /Bt (Credited)/charged to other
2ENE comprehensive income = (10,657) - = 15,548 4,891
EHESR Exchange difference - (3,128) 1,367 4,748 264 3,251
SHEBFHEEEZAYE Clasified as liabilities associated
afE with assets held for sale = (21,884) = = = (21,884)
M2015% 12318 At 31 December 2015 18,156 1,054,384 (33,609) (136,641) (95,900) 806,390
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32. EEFHIE (&) 32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

ERAERNAKREREEERRAHIBEER Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity

8 iR ERL IS I A — B B 8 - BI AT A E BE A basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax assets against

BRIERIITE & E R IE T B BB E AR IE - T EE current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxation relates to the

EABERNIIEZSE Bt ABEHEE: same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2016 2015
T 5T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEERIBEE Deferred tax assets (100,652) (5,962)
EERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 735,675 812,352
635,023 806,390
2016 2015
BET T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000

FEEFRIEEE (@128 A8 %4 mE) Deferred tax assets to be recovered
after more than twelve months - -

FRERBEE (BB12EAEBZT) Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
after more than twelve months 928,224 914,145
928,224 914,145

72016512 4318 - AEBRBERIBELEHRIBEE 2 As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not recognised deferred tax

%5 E5 18 BB 2,417,0007T (20154 : 3 %2,503,000 assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$2,417,000 (2015:

TL) RBRIBITRIA - BRATI S EIR B (EREHR HK$2,503,000). These tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.
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33. JRHEEE
2016F L MIRBAEREAFHELE-

RIE2015F 11 A11BEFSE®ERE  ARITEEL
EXTRETHEES-

FHEEERGHEEEZHMAEBEZEERRIM
T

33. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

No non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

According to the Board's written resolution dated 11 November
2015, the Bank agreed to sell certain premises to BOCHK.

The major classes of assets held for sale and liabilities associated with
assets held for sale are as follows:

2016 2015
BET T AR T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
&E ASSETS
Y - 2 RS Properties, plant and equipment = 132,729
a8& LIABILITIES
EEFHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities = 21,884
- 110,845
34, KA 34. SHARE CAPITAL
2016 2015
BET T BEET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEETRAE: Issued and fully paid:
7,000,0000% & 18 i% 7,000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 3,144,517
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35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

cash inflow before taxation

Reconciliation of operating profit to operating

2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

£ T Operating profit 3,311,046 3,238,220
e Depreciation 199,917 222,817
AL F R Net charge of impairment allowances 486,075 633,324
Hr 3R R (B 2= s [0 43¢ Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (4,680) (1,150)
B 2 B (kKR EFEE) Advances written off net of recoveries (456,602)  (1,127,792)
[REVEA BB @31E A 2 F R 1T & Change in balances with banks and

Hith & M4 0 2 # 8 other financial institutions with original

maturity over three months (5,576,552) 2,430,211

REEAREBBE3ME A 2 FERIT R Change in placements with banks and

Hitv & mgB s e HFERs 28 other financial institutions with original

maturity over three months (7,236,680) 8,865,231

NABEZ T AERZ Change in financial assets at fair value

CREEZEE through profit or loss 2,486,261 163,628
MESMTAEZES Change in derivative financial instruments 366,960 (232,756)
ERREMREBEZ EE) Change in advances and other accounts (23,137,199)  (4,435,098)
SRMEECEH Change in financial investments (20,456,994)  (3,798,709)
HEEZ2H Change in other assets 3,415,244 (3,282,136)
RITREMERMBE 2 FRE Change in deposits and balances from banks and

w2 other financial institutions (510,964)  (6,774,437)

AABEZ LT AERZ Change in financial liabilities at fair value

== el through profit or loss (1,351,900) (395,337)
XEHERZEE) Change in deposits from customers 39,265,547 8,628,048
E{@ BRIBRER 2 28 Change in other accounts and provisions 2,932,208 (2,207,166)

fERE e s 8 Effect of changes in exchange rates 616,996 1,152,459
BRERAKERSy GRE) #RA Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before taxation (5,651,317) 3,079,357
REEB RS REF BT Cash flows from operating activities included:

— BIAE — Interest received 7,329,518 9,337,866

— BEfRFE — Interest paid (3,188,492)  (4,468,941)

— BIARE — Dividend received 2,338 7,236

213



#19% A% 444 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2016 ANNUAL REPORT 4 3§

www.nch.com.hk

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

35. ZKEREREXRKTE @

(b) RERFRBEREEEDIN

35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Cont'd)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash

equivalents

2016 2015
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFHReRIBAEIEARNZ Cash and balances with banks and
TR 1T R E & B A% 78 /0 45 54 other financial institutions with original
maturity within three months 36,566,396 44,060,170
RENEARE3ME A N2 FER1T & Placements with banks and other
Hth & M 2 € AfF R financial institutions with original
maturity within three months 1,592,218 1,205,984
[REJEA B E3(E A M2 E% Treasury bills with original maturity
within three months 4,908,283 8,556,255
RENEAR E3ME B N2 F & Certificates of deposit held with original
maturity within three months 4,501,831 -
47,568,728 53,822,409

36. ABEBERAE

FRABRAEDNZ2REBEARARRLRZEER
RRNERIETMRE  HFRBEHFIZAORE

RBEERERMESRER BT :

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND

COMMITMENTS

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liability and commitment and the

aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared with
reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of

capital adequacy ratio.

2016 2015
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEEZERIER Direct credit substitutes 16,555,219 21,262,146
HRXZBEM@2AEE Transaction-related contingencies 1,540,154 1,830,203
HEZEBNAEE Trade-related contingencies 12,158,792 7,801,271
FRRENEELE Asset sales with recourse 4,796,235 5,419,397
T 5 503 A O S RO 2 R R Commitments that are unconditionally

cancellable without prior notice 81,546,051 75,313,331

Hih#E  RIEHB A Other commitments with an original maturity of
— 1A — up to one year 1,210,783 1,983,255
— 1F LA E — over one year 8,884,742 9,083,933
126,691,976 122,693,536
= E R NS Credit risk-weighted amount 21,302,109 21,148,878
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status
of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of
contract.

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not
provided for in the financial statements:

2016 2015

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

B R E L E R Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 9,230 8,571
EREBEREFL Authorised but not contracted for 1,069 232
10,299 8,803

WA EBEARAIERIL D RSB Z BRGRE 1 REAE - PA
RASRE 2 BFRETRZZEE-

38. REFHEAIE
(@) fEBEBEA

RETARE REHERK T AREERER
MEEARMAXN Z&ERS

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to
purchase computer equipment and software, and to renovate the
Group’s premises.

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@) As lessee

The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:

2016 2015
BT T BT T
HKS$°000 HK$'000

T i RAETF Land and buildings
— NEBIB1F — Not later than one year 249,064 244,631
— 1F A EE5FR — Later than one year but not later than five years 541,158 604,033
— 5% 1% — Later than five years 41,999 92,977
832,221 941,641

H fth i Other commitments
— NEBE1F — Not later than one year 555 877
— 1 EESFER — Later than one year but not later than five years 147 96
832,923 942,614
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38. REHERIE (&)
(b) EHRHAA

RETARE REHRERK T AREEREER
BRI ANZAREEAEE 2 REBKHES

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2016 2015
BT T BT T
HKS$°000 HK$'000

T REF Land and buildings
— NBIB1F — Not later than one year 12,351 14,911
— 15U EESER — Later than one year but not later than five years 7,377 17,315
19,728 32,226

AEBNREHEZAEAEREYE HEFHAR
BHIFEE3F - HOGK - REBRETRIRESE

39. K&

AEEEFEHZEHRBIA T RENRERRRE-
HERBERAEEAEENEEREEHEH -

HREERRAKEATHERAFLENNFKE
FHHERRMSRNBEIAN BT ARH B ERER
REEEHEREME -

40. DERE
() BREEHE

AEBEBH O REEEEOE DAl R EART
EERT VEEBRIKRE-
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The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to three
years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay
security deposits.

39. LITIGATION

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by
various independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in
relation to the normal commercial activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and
counterclaims because the directors believe that the Group has
meritorious defences against the claimants or the amounts involved
in these claims are not expected to be material.

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
(a) By operating segment

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal
Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and Investment.
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(a) ®REEHE(E)

EASRITMERBTEFRRASREZENRITR
B EAARTEBRERBEATS MERRITE
BRERBIFBEATE ENMEXRHGZ KRTAEZ
BB/ BERABEAKENERN RPEL X
FMIMNERR O - S E R F A PFIEEA RSB NRE BN
BR REMEBGEHRES  WERWRLEARTM
EERTEBRNBPRFFESTARENES &
LEBRZENESRFTEREBRNFTECES
EBREHEE EANE2INNEXBKREER
EERLAEBRIANKLIRS BEEEEAFEE
M RRREBRZEOER (BE2 TR AL
BXBHERENEEEEABRENLE) -

188 3574 48 B i B T 2 1R AT T 2 R ) R o
HRERARENNE L EBEBEERRET S
RV E AR AR E RS B o e A B
AR AR (RE) 2 AARFE LR DR R K405
RRNEMREZT COBERLEBHER-

(B AEBEMEERTERREEASEER
BERHERMERBREFNER -

—(ARBRORAR L T 2R EEFEBNZE
BRNER -ZERNERER SRESEEE# Y-
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40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(a) By operating segment (Cont'd)

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general
banking services. Personal Banking serves individual customers while
Corporate Banking deals with non-individual customers. The Treasury
segment is responsible for managing the capital, liquidity, and the
interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition
to proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments
and receives funds from deposit taking activities of Personal Banking
and Corporate Banking. These inter-segment funding is charged
according to the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism of the
Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted
to reflect the effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the
profit and loss information in relation to Treasury is not comparable
to the assets and liabilities information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by
supporting units. Charges are paid to this segment from other
business segments based on market rates per square foot for their
occupation of the Group’s premises. The exchange difference arising
from capital of our subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its
income statement, is also included in this class.

"Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of
items related to the Group as a whole and totally independent of the
other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include

items directly attributable to the segment. For management
overheads, allocations are made on reasonable bases.

217



#19% A% 444 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2016 ANNUAL REPORT 4 3§

www.ncbh.com.hk

RS R Bl 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

40. DERE (@

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

() REEIE (B (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
BARA LERT
Personal  Corporate BEEK RE At ANt APHEH G4
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
BRI BETT BT BRI AETT BETT BRI BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE20165128318 Year ended 31 December 2016
FHEWA/ () Net interest income/(expense)
- R - External 307,501 3,009,601 1,217,107 - - 4,534,809 - 4,534,809
- BXH - Inter-seqment 558,112 173,881 (731,993) - - - - -
865,613 3,183,482 485,714 - - 4,534,809 - 4,534,809
BREERAEUA/ (KH)  Net fee and commission income/(expense) 774,215 784,111 14,072 98 (1,085 1,572,071 - 1,572,071
FRHMHUE/ (BE) Net trading gain/(loss) 37,113 50,907 15,899 32,007 (1321) 134,695 - 134,695
ATBUDLER AT ABEZ Netloss on finandial instruments designated
SBIASER at fair value through profit or loss - - (7,708) - - (7,708) - (7,708)
EheREE FhE Net gain on other financial assets - 100,770 92,002 - - 192,772 - 192,772
AT TN Other operating income 128 3 - 138393 12,785 151309 (124,250 27,059
BRABEEN 2FEEUA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 1,677,069 4,119,933 599,979 170,588 10379 6,577,948 (124,250) 6,453,698
BEEETEE Net charge of impairment allowances (99,177) (3121 (15,627) - - (486,075) - (486,075)
FREWA Net operating income 1,577,892 3,748,662 584,352 170,588 10,379 6,091,873 (124,250) 5,967,623
@EYH Operating expenses (1,013,932) (1,140,060) (279,794) (184,470) (162,571) (2,780,827) 124,250 (2,656,577)
&2ER/ (B8 Operating profit/(loss) 563,960 2,608,602 304,558 (13,882) (152,192) 3,311,046 - 3,311,046
RENEDAEREL Net gain from fair value
s adjustments on investment properties - - - 29,340 - 29,340 - 29,340
HE/EfEME EMRAGZ  Net gain from disposalirevaluation
Fhs of properties, plant and equipment - = - 4,136 = 4,136 - 4,136
BEAEN/ (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 563,960 2,608,602 304,558 19,594 (152,192) 3,344,522 - 3,344,522
R2016512431R At 31 December 2016
BE ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 39,800,947 153,986,068 147,613,051 7,353,037 179,606 348,932,709 - 348,932,709
& LIABILITIES
AHEE Seqment liabilities 96,078,909 173305873 38,952,505 4123 1,906,331 310,247,741 - 310,247,718
HE2016512531A Year ended 31 December 2016
&R Other information
BRI Capital expenditure - - - 211,81 - 211,82 - 211,81
fE Depreciation 11,848 6,016 390 184,466 (2,803) 199917 - 199,917
EHEH Amortisation of securities - - (8,708) - - (8,708) - (8,708)
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() REEIE (B (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
AARS 3G
Personal Corporate 82K %A A NGt Clisiit= 7a
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
BRI A8 BETT AR AU BETT BRI AU
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE20155128318 Year ended 31 December 2015
FHEWA/ () Net interest income/{expense)
- R - External (66,016) 2,397,178 2,383,988 - - 4,720,150 - 4,720,150
- BXH - Inter-seqment 980,29 BT (1,216013) = = = = =
914,280 2,632,895 1,172,975 - - 4,720,150 - 4,720,150
FREERAESMA/ (ZUH)  Net fee and commission income/(expenses) 695,053 596,09 67,101 65 (1,365) 1,356,950 = 1,356,950
Faths/ (58 Net trading gain/loss) BN (31,466) 3345 39,005 (1) 54,159 - 54,159
REBNARERETABEZ Net loss on financial instruments designated
SBIASER at fair value through profit or loss = = (6,382) - - (6,382) - (6,382)
A e BAE 2 FhE Net gain on other financial assets - 79,531 184,998 - 71892 336,421 - 336,421
GO Other operating income 185 - - 149,052 6,278 155,515 (113,107) 4,408
BRABEEN 2FEEUWA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 1,652,790 3,271,056 1,422,037 188,142 76,788 6,616,813 (113,107 6,503,706
HEEETEE Net charge of impairment allowances (106,584) (526,740) - - - (633,324 - (633,324)
FREWA Net operating income 1,546,206 2,750,316 1,422,037 188,142 76,788 5,983,489 (113,107 5,870,382
BETH Operating expenses (953,955) (1,121,281) (275,988) (205,721) (188,324) (2,745,269) 113,107 (2,632,162)
g2%H,/ (58) Operating profit(loss) 59251 169035 1,146,049 (7579 (1115%) 323820 - 33
RENENAERRZ Net gain from fair value
e adjustments on investment properties = = - 121,046 = 121,046 - 121,046
HE/EENE EMRRGEZ  Netloss from disposalirevaluation
FER of properties, plant and equipment - - - 19,246 - 19,246 - 19,246
BEAER/ (58) Profit(oss) before taxation S50 16905 L6097 (113 3378502 - 337502
H2015812531A At 31 December 2015
g ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 39,504,331 134,505,455 123,466,694 7,458,268 129,316 305,064,064 - 305,064,064
FHEEE Assets held for sale = = = 132,729 = 132,729 = 132,729
EELE Total assets 39,504,331 134505455 123,466,694 7,590,997 129316 305,196,793 - 305,196,793
& LIABILITIES
2Ha%E Segment liabilities 91,688294 138,648,224 36,023,296 4,335 1711990 268,076,139 - 268,076,139
BHEEEZRBAR Liabilities associated with assets held for
sale - - - - 21,884 21,884 - 21,884
BELE Total liabilities 91,688,294 138,648,224 36,023,296 4335 1733874 268,098,023 - 268,098,023
BE20155128318 Year ended 31 December 2015
AfiER Other information
ERtE i Capital expenditure - - - 7148 - 71143 - 71,143
HE Depreciation 16,616 8,849 671 205,711 (9,030) 222817 - 222817
ERH Amortisation of securities - - (120379) - - (120379) - (120379)
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40. DERE (@
(b) BHEEFHES

NTEHZRIBEMNBARNTRLE XM DE 1B
RFTZER AKBEABRRREEAHEELCKRZ
DITFREM D 1R :

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

(b)

By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places
of operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the
locations of the branches responsible for reporting the results or
booking the assets:

2016 2015

REUHE REURE

EHA 2 EHERIZ

REE A FEEE A

Net Net

operating operating

income income
before  BRFL AT before  BRER AT A
impairment Profit before impairment  Profit before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 3,949,714 2,582,188 4,054,030 2,823,205
H B i Mainland of China 2,451,494 705,399 2,381,416 509,623
HAth Others 52,490 56,935 68,260 45,684
CE Total 6,453,698 3,344,522 6,503,706 3,378,512

2016

RAEE
AR
BwEE #wefE FRHBEE Contingent
Total Total Non-current liabilities and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
B Hong Kong 213,536,801 185,711,520 6,584,651 40,740,121
HR i Mainland of China 135,395,908 124,536,221 814,200 85,951,855
CE Total 348,932,709 310,247,741 7,398,851 126,691,976
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(b) By geographical area (Cont'd)

2015
HABE
M EAHE
BEE wWaE  FERBEE  Contingent
Total Total Non-current liabilities and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
a5 Hong Kong 188,707,746 165,544,765 6,733,035 39,662,023
AR i Mainland of China 114,108,360 102,324,412 786,367 82,596,097
HAh Others 2,380,687 228,846 2,034 435,416
A& Total 305,196,793 268,098,023 7,521,436 122,693,536
41. EEBREE 41. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

M2016F12A31H KR&EB 2 & B 5%
3,140,124,0007T (20154 : 4 #4,581,856,0007T )
EAGEHRRPREERGAEFEE 2 EEER
Heofpih REEBBERCBHRANEEES R
ZE K 2 B & &5 #889,830,0007T (20154 : 7
#478,835,0007T) AL B AERLESEEMER
2 BESE BB %4,058,932,0007T (20154 : i #
5,084,230,00070) " WEER [ RHGHEE]  [£ @

BEIRIBESER] AR

As at 31 December 2016, the liabilities of the Group amounting
to HK$3,140,124,000 (2015: HK$4,581,856,000) were secured by
assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate settlement

operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$889,830,000 (2015: HK$478,835,000) were secured by debt
securities and bills related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The

amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these liabilities was
HK$4,058,932,000 (2015: HK$5,084,230,000) mainly included in

]

“Trading assets”,

Financial investments” and “Trade bills”.
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42. EWMIEZESH 42. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
TRINTAEED K IRTHFEEE LR The following tables present details of the Group’s financial
HUBZARMN eI AEFE- instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

2016
REESR
RPEEZ
EER REESE AEREEABRTHEHZ
SRAEMEE RPIRN HEeE
ERASHE Gross ©MEEFHE Related amounts not set off
BEMAE  amounts of Netamounts in the balance sheet
Gross  recognised  of financial Bl
amounts of financial assets HeHm
recognised liabilities set presented in $RMIA Cash
financial off inthe  the balance Financial collateral i
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount

BRI BRI BETR BRI BRI BRI
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EE Assets
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 527,532 - 527,532 (395,983) - 131,549
Hin & & Other assets 923,058 (830,329) 92,729 - - 92,729
1,450,590 (830,329) 620,261 (395,983) - 224,278
2016
REEAR
RAHEHZ
ERR REEEE REREERERTHESZ
tRMEELE RPITEH HEEH
ERALH Gross ©MEEFHE Related amounts not set off
EfEH#%E amountsof Netamounts in the balance sheet
Gross  recognised  of financial [BF; %4
amounts of financial liabilities ReHm
recognised assets set  presented in $RMIA Cash
financial off inthe  the balance Financial collateral B
liabilities balance sheet sheet  instruments pledged  Net amount
BRI BETT BRI BETT BETT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=4 Liabilities
fTESMTA Derivative financial instruments 598,744 - 598,744 (395,983) - 202,761
Hin B & Other liabilities 1,254,456 (830,329) 424,127 - - 424,127

1,853,200 (830,329) 1,022,871 (395,983)

626,888
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42. £@MIT EZIKE (&) 42. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont'd)
2015
RBESRE

FRflEz  REERE
ERA RPIRH AENEERBERD
tRAGELER SREEFE BHZABEE

Gross amounts ~ Net amounts ~ Related amounts not set off

BHREE  of recognised  of financial in the balance sheet
BELE financial assets Bz
Gross amounts  liabilities set  presented in SHIA Refm
of recognised offinthe  the balance Financial ~Cash collateral FH
financial assets  balance sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
THEERmIA Derivative financial instruments 338,260 - 338,260 (59,230) - 279,030
HitEE Other assets 1,352,506 (986,109) 366,397 - - 366,397
1,690,766 (986,109) 704,657 (59,230) - 645,427
2015
REEERE REEER
KPHEEHZ  RAFIRH ABREERBRT
ERR SRAEFE BHzEBEeS
BHERALE SBEESE  Netamounts Related amounts not set off
BEM%E Gross amounts of financial in the balance sheet
Gross amounts  of recognised liabilities BEERZ
of recognised financial assets  presented in SHMIR Refm
financial ~ set off in the the balance Financial ~Cash collateral FE
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& Liabilities
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 154,121 - 154,121 (59,230) - 94,891
Hitg Other liabilities 994,352 (986,109) 8,243 - - 8,243
1,148,473 (986,109) 162,364 (59,230) - 103,134
BRASEENAASIMIETANERLQERZH For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and
FREAERHR WERERNNIHMELIZTNE repurchase transactions entered into by the Group, related amounts
AR -5 F 2 HESEIRAFEER - with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or

other predetermined events occur.
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43, cRIEEHER

M2016% 2015512 A318  REBRBE R T AR
ARG ZEEREMEE-

44, BEEER

RIS (AFIEDI) E3830R (AT (BBEEF
RERDAP) E=BHRE - AARTEFRHEZ
BB T

43. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no transferred
financial assets of the Group that do not qualify for derecognition.

44. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

2016 2015
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REREREEZBEBRZ L Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding at year end 833 707
RERNKBEEEBERZ &= BT Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding during the year 1,079 739

45, FECEREATRS

BATMERER

AEBREEERAGREEEEFERAEEN Y
BRELETFHFREENFEEFEEETAREE
SR WEMR2016558308 ([£x A ) ETRE
REBEREEEEZARER EX-

AEBEHPREERZES MPBEEETHTEA
RAEAMBERE ([MBER]) R EARKME ([
B)RIWEBEESREE EROTMEEEHARS
FERDE (BB EMR -

224

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

General information of the parent companies:

BOCHK, the Group’s former immediate holding company, disposed
all its interests in the Group to Cinda Financial Holdings, a indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of China Cinda. The transaction was
completed and the share transfer of the Group effected on 30 May
2016 (“effective date”).

The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-
owned financial enterprise established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).
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45. FECEHEALTRS (8)

(@) BR/LAFRFGRFEHZEMDTETH

R5

(i) AEBERAR CERERARRPIRES
MAREBRXZPRBRITRMHBER AR ([
BRIT)ES P RESKREBREEAA
(TEE )P ERTZERAR  HEF
BREEREEAR ([RRDHWEENE R
B MHROZ2EHRB AR fhRERLEN
EESREEEEGNEEBEAA -

EeR LN E RIS REF RS-

AEbH R BRITETORSREEETISEE - A
2016F 1 A1E Z 4 B B ERITAMILEEL B
BREANRARS HRES B A%%13,387,000
7C (20154 : 7 #90,422,0007T ) } 7 #45,056,000
7t (20154 : ##141,518,0007T ) °

ABHEPREBSETHRZREEEMIBES -
H2016F1 B 1B 24 B B R F B MM BES
MEPEEMIRA RS H 255 B &8 1,700,000
7C (20154 : 7 #3,037,0007T ) & 76 #55,251,0007C
(20154 : 8 %331,591,0007T ) °

H2016F1A1BEAMA  AEBHESETEE T
SRES  HE(B A% 185,297,0007T (20154 : BE
& (B A5/8%392,600,000 Tt RIEEMETEE LB
#986,800,0007T) * HEEAL & B E 2 F W H) BB I
1,758,0007T (20154 : HEFE R EWH 2 5 am
2 B #) 474 %16,422,0007T M 7% #85,600,0007T )
RS IR 5 — M AR ETT -

ABLBEEHRARZBRARZEHZEMARNRS
BEBEFR - H20165F1 A1 B 24K B st %
BB ELEMN T BB AE39,799,0007T (2015
£ 1 4 #149,213,0007T ) °
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45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies

(i) The Group's former immediate holding company is BOCHK,
which is in turn controlled by Bank of China Limited
("BOC"). Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin")
is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Investment Corporation (“CIC") which is
a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign currency
investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities
in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market
activities. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the
Group arising from these transactions with BOC from 1 January
2016 to effective date were HK$13,387,000 (2015: HK$90,422,000)
and HK$45,056,000 (2015: HK$141,518,000) respectively.

The majority of transactions with BOCHK arises from money market
activities. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the
Group arising from these transactions with BOCHK from 1 January
2016 to effective date were HK$1,700,000 (2015: HK$3,037,000)
and HK$55,251,000 (2015: HK$331,591,000) respectively.

From 1 January 2016 to effective date, the Group sold certain
premises to BOCHK with selling price of HK$185,297,000
(2015: premises of HK$392,600,000 and investment premises
of HK$986,800,000). The gain from disposal of premises was
approximately HK$1,758,000 (2015: gain from disposal of premises
and investment properties were approximately HK$16,422,000
and HK$85,600,00 respectively). The transactions were entered on
normal commercial terms.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by
the former parent companies arises from deposits from customers.
The aggregate amount of expenses arising from these transactions
from 1 January 2016 to effective date was HK$39,799,000 (2015:
HK$149,213,000).
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45. FECEHEALTRS (8)

(@) BR/LAFRFGRFEHZEMDTETH

R5 (%)

(il AEEzZEEERARREESE MEE
SERXPEGEE (FE)ERERAR ([E
ERBDES HEEEREERTBEZER
AR REBRRRERZEG ARSI &
AR 2 R EE A R 0 B8] B8 7 e ) 4B R P -
TEREABAFRM BT MBHRB RS

PREERRLAMEBERIEE R -

A EPEHEEETHIRZIRETFRPER
M2016F12A31H  ANEEHBARIBELERBE
28,854,437,0007C - B AKX H#EE2016%F12 8318
FREEMBMLEESBRTEENT HABE RS
#527,845,2967T °

REBD BEEERBETHRZFEARFPER 1R2016
F12A318  NEEHBERIEERE A5%18,219,000
TTo BAMBARE2016512 531 B B{ZEE B Rt
HEKBERPEENT AR AB13,882,0007T °

ABHEEFRATEH 2 EMARNRZIRE € 8IE
& 2016512 A318 - NEEEEAKIBETE BB
3,696,629,000 0 ° B £ H B £2016F 128311 &
BRAEES 2 E AR EERRAREFEED
g A 48 %8 5 75 #511,731,0007T °
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45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies (Cont'd)

(i) The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial
Holdings which is in turn controlled by China Cinda (HK)
Company Holdings Ltd (“Cinda Hong Kong"”). China
Cinda is the controlling entity of Cinda Hong Kong and its
major shareholder and de facto controller is MOF, which is
one of the ministries under the State Council of the PRC
Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal revenue
and expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other entities
in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises from deposits
from customers. As at 31 December 2016, the related aggregate
amounts of the Group were HK$28,854,437,000. The aggregate
amounts of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions
with China Cinda from effective date to 31 December 2016 were
HK$27,845,296.

The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong arises from
deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2016, the related
aggregate amounts of the Group was HK$18,219,000. The
aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with Cinda Hong Kong from effective date to 31
December 2016 was HK$3,882,000.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by
the parent companies arises from financial investments. As at 31
December 2016, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$3,696,629,000. The aggregate amount of income of the Group
arising from these transactions with other companies controlled by
the parent companies from effective date to 31 December 2016 was
HK$11,731,000.
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45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies (Cont'd)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies arises from advances to customers and deposits
from customers. As at 31 December 2016, the related aggregate
amount of the Group were HK$732,259,000 and HK$6,171,802,000
respectively. The aggregate amount of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with other companies
controlled by the parent companies from effective date to 31
December 2016 were HK$22,336,000 and HK$82,699,000
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies
and the other companies controlled by the parent companies are not
considered material.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the
normal course of business which include loans, investment securities
and money market transactions.

(b) Transactions with government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities

The Group is subject to the control of State Council of the PRC
Government through CIC and Central Huijin and the control of the
MOF, both of which also directly or indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government authorities, agencies,
affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters
into banking transactions with government authorities, agencies,
affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course of
business at commercial terms.
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(b) EEBUF#E  REME HMEREREAM
REZEHERNRE (&)

M:_HL*

BEEBTRBRNTFSIA:

B RURERERNEIER:

— RITAE 2 TR AERR

- HE BE SELEDHEBEAE TR
FrE1T 2 fE%

- He (L SINGE - BE SR N AR BB AR B AR TS

- REGEREL K

- BEAKEX B BERIHART

(0 EESEAE

TESEAERERUEERNEREREENNER
Ketd HEREZEESREXB AL BREERF
BEBRAB AKBELEREBRTERITIESEA
EEREMERKERLEERE -REAFREF
AEEIRH EBARRIT R AR ““TZIzsz}\
EFHBMEATETEAR

228

45,

(b)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Transactions with government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities (Cont'd)

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

(c)

lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit
taking;

inter-bank balance taking and placing;

sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds
issued by other state controlled entities;

rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment
related services;

provision of fiduciary activities; and

purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and
postage services.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and

responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, including Directors and Senior
Management. The Group accepts deposits from and grants loans and
credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material
transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the

Bank and its holding companies, as well as parties related to them.
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45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c) Key management personnel (Cont'd)

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended
31 December is detailed as follows:

2016 2015

BET T BT T

HKS$°000 HK$'000

S REMEHE TR Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 37,322 24,623
RN Post-employment benefits 2,958 1,642
40,280 26,265

(d) ERFED TR

MR2016F12A31H  RNIRTTER BEBHBREF IR —
MR EIRRETR 5 E LN E W X E KB Qa
FRIB M Bl A8 %777,815,0007T (20154 : /B 1
1,440,338,0007T ) & 7 277,885,000 (20154 :
75 #226,650,0007T ) ©

46. EIRRERE

KT H2REMBRBRITERFZEERER
EVE RIS R AR - B ERIZ IR 5 8 F e ET
ARBEBREARZHF 2 &ERBBRAEN RS
o REMBEMA RS 2 BEERE LA 2 INEE
B EBREBIERAMELERISHTFREMTR -
AR A E B =R RAZ AN - B ERBRITZE
S 1T R EER EZRIT 2 BITREN -

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate sums of amounts due from
subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from
transactions entered into during the normal course of business at
commercial terms are HK$777,815,000 (2015: HK$1,440,338,000)
and HK$277,885,000 (2015: HK$226,650,000) respectively.

46. INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of international banking statistics.
International claims are exposures to counterparties on which the
ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum
of cross-border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign
currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country
different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in another country, the risk will be
transferred to the country where its head office is located.
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46. ERBRERE (2

AEEAERBERK RS ED T RERERZEE
BASREAETEI0% A E 2 EREMT

46.

INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS (Cont'd)

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting
to 10% or more of the aggregate international claims of the Group

are shown as follows:

2016
FEERITRA KSR
Non-bank private sector
FER1T FEm
RS IARE

BELHE Non-bank Non-financial
R1T Official financial private st
Banks sector institutions sector Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$’000
A s Mainland of China 48,470,053 1,820,537 216,198 31,209,791 81,716,579
B Hong Kong 2,368,664 14,781 3,929,130 34,635,628 40,948,203
2015
SEERITALA ML IS
Non-bank private sector
JEERTT
© R Els
B Non-bank FLARSE
]RIT Official financial Non-financial s
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR i Mainland of China 34,617,405 859,966 286,850 25,347,925 61,112,146
B Hong Kong 1,581,719 25,114 2,392,489 32,771,230 36,770,552
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47. NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the types of direct
exposures with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

2016
BEEEERKN BEEEE/ERN
SER WEKAE WEBRAE
Hw&IEE On-balance Off-balance  #EBREIE
[tems in the sheet sheet Total
HKMA return exposure exposure exposure
BETT BETT BETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRAT - P REFFAER  Central government, central
Wi B A A& government-owned entities
BEME and their subsidiaries and joint
ventures 1 28,674,737 1,044,272 29,719,009
5 BT 5 BB AR Local governments, local
g KB AR & government-owned entities
aEMRE and their subsidiaries and joint
ventures 2 13,482,468 3,841,924 17,324,392
FEIZEIENE RS EM PRC nationals residing in Mainland
135 M s Ao i or other entities incorporated in
HNBARIREERE Mainland and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 3 65,352,514 27,467,692 92,820,206
TEEEEME—THHRR  Other entities of central government
XTI B) H i g not reported in item 1 above 4 4,213,992 = 4,213,992
NEFEFE LA — 5  Other entities of local governments
BT A E At i not reported in item 2 above 5 11,889 = 11,889
REIEIRINE RERSIN  PRC nationals residing outside
MR #E - EFAMNEAA Mainland or entities incorporated
FE outside Mainland where the
credit is granted for use in
Mainland 6 10,974,129 2,089,606 13,063,735
H x5 F fmERERAIE Other counterparties where the
WAR AIEIRITH A AR exposures are considered to be
HIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 4,902,964 - 4,902,964
st Total 8 127,612,693 34,443,494 162,056,187
MR EBSEMNEEST  Total assets after provision 9 356,683,339
BEEBEBERANMEREE  On-balance sheet exposures as
HEEBBERDLL percentage of total assets 10 35.78%
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47. FESRITHVA Hb R B A E ()

NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES

(Cont'd)
2015

EERBRAN BEBBERN

EER ) B B A 4R ) R B AR 4
WmRIBEE On-balance Off-balance 8 f A
[tems in the sheet sheet Total
HKMA return exposure exposure exposure
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R ERAT - R REBUT R A R Central government, central

HiE - HENBARK government-owned entities and their

BEME subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 23,932,429 2,995,217 26,927,646
075 U ~ 3 75 B #5 B D Local governments, local government-

Mg BB AR R owned entities and their subsidiaries

SEME and joint ventures 2 13,890,604 2,709,320 16,599,924
HEFEIRAE RS E A PRC nationals residing in Mainland

TR A - or other entities incorporated in

HitB AR RAEERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and

joint ventures 3 47,421,978 27,853,433 75,275,411
TEEELRE-—BRR Other entities of central government not

BT I8 EL e reported in item 1 above 4 2,623,361 = 2,623,361
TEEE LS ZIEh R Other entities of local governments not

BT R E) E s reported in item 2 above 5 15,330 = 15,330
R E£EHEINE R FEID PRC nationals residing outside Mainland

A - KA RIE AR or entities incorporated outside

=8 Mainland where the credit is granted

for use in Mainland 6 7,511,143 1,037,765 8,548,908
H X HHFMEREEE  Other counterparties where the

R BIERITH A E R exposures are considered to be non-

HEAE bank Mainland exposures 7 5,245,489 - 5,245,489
BEr Total 8 100,640,334 34,595,735 135,236,069
HREREENEERE Total assets after provision 9 313,731,968
EEBBERANERERAE On-balance sheet exposures as

HEEREASL percentage of total assets 10 32.08%
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48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

() X(E&EEX (a) Balance sheet
M®12A31H As at 31 December 2016 2015
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
EFRE RERIRITREM S RS Cash and balances with banks and other
B 45 R financial institutions 16,232,411 15,843,529
ERTREMESREE =+ (AR Placements with banks and other financial
E|HY 2 7E HATF B institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 233,161 145,331
AAREE L ABRZEMERE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 3,680,401 6,963,572
TESHMTE Derivative financial instruments 485,175 512,683
EREHMEE Advances and other accounts 130,592,331 112,246,377
TRIRE Financial investments 56,002,929 45,967,421
RPN X Interests in subsidiaries 8,171,067 8,171,067
wEYHE Investment properties 383,830 394,410
R NG ] Properties, plant and equipment 6,199,623 6,329,838
Hih&EE Other assets 504,185 3,990,025
HFHEEE Assets held for sale = 132,729
BERT Total assets 222,485,113 200,696,982
=K LIABILITIES
RITREMESBEE 2 TR EEH Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions 3,323,848 5,588,738
AAEZ I ABERZERAE Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 3,223,456 4,575,356
TEEmTE Derivative financial instruments 142,608 205,753
BPEFER Deposits from customers 176,466,913 152,979,068
H M BRIE K X Other accounts and provisions 1,870,229 1,619,871
FERREAE Current tax liabilities 208,624 187,530
REHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 726,073 803,862
HEEEEZRBAAE Liabilities associated with assets held for sale = 21,884
BEER Total liabilities 185,961,751 165,982,062
=N EQUITY
A% < Share capital 3,144,517 3,144,517
& Reserves 33,378,845 31,570,403
BARBEE Total equity 36,523,362 34,714,920
BERERERE Total liabilities and equity 222,485,113 200,696,982

REZGN2017F3A288 BARETHIATALTAR

REE:
FALK Fang Hong
EFE Director

on behalf of the Board by:

R 41 B3
BF

guang

Chan Sai Ming
Director

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and signed
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48. EERBERREGEBHR (&) 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)
(b) EZEHX (b) Statement of changes in equity
Rt
Reserves
AHHE
BEDAE
BEGEE
Reserve for
BE fairvalue
BfiffE  changes of
BA  Premises available- EEfE* RERE BEFEN  E4EH
Share  revaluation for-sale  Regulatory  Translation Retained Total
capital reserve  securities reserve* reserve earnings equity
B%Tr  B¥%Tr  BBTr AT A%Tr  ATr  A%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1201561718 At 1 January 2015 3,144,517 5,725,743 149,077 763,165 (5,938) 22,673,630 32,450,194
ERRT Profit for the year - - - - - 2473698 2,473,698
Eth2ElE: Other comprehensive income:
FE Premises - 350,149 - - - = 350,149
A HEES Available-for-sale securities = = (17,028) = = = (17,028)
ERAEEE Currency translation difference - - 424 - (17) - 407
2ENEEE Total comprehensive income - 350,149 (16,604) - (17) 2,473,698 2,807,226
REEHE B Release upon disposal of premises - (454,824 = = - 454,824 =
ERERGRT Transfer from retained earnings - - = 80,054 = (80,054) =
&g Dividends - - - - - (542,500) (542,500)
12015612 A31H At 31 December 2015 3,144,517 5,621,068 132,473 843,219 (5,955 24,979,598 34,714,920
"2016F1 718 At 1 January 2016 3,144,517 5,621,068 132,473 843,219 (5,955) 24,979,598 34,714,920
FEET Profit for the year - - = - - 2,187,014 2,187,014
HEnzEks: Other comprehensive income:
FE Premises - (72,051) - - - - (72,051)
RERERHNEZBEER  Actuarial losses on defined benefit plan - - = = = (1,420) (1,420)
SRS Available-for-sale securities - - (298,878) - - = (298,878)
ERAEEE Currency translation difference - - (34) = (6,189) = (6,223)
Eqalhentitd Total comprehensive income - (72,051)  (298,912) = (6,189) 2,185,594 1,808,442
ARENLE B Release upon disposal of premises - (153,799) - - - 153,799 -
BREREEA Transfer from retained earnings - - - 231,353 - (231.3%3) -
12016812 A31H At 31 December 2016 3,144,517 5,395,218 (166,439) 1,080,572 (12,144) 27,081,638 36,523,362
@ BRIz BB ST LR F30R B EFUREUREEEN  2e =@ In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are

ERERBRBHNEFBNEEEREFERT KRR
Bz (BEARBALEMTAEEARR)
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set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or other

unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances
recognised under HKAS 39.
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49. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-
owned financial enterprise established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

50. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017.
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